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A New Dawn Rising

Welcome home
South Africans inspire, empower and
celebrate active citizenship in South Africa.
We are capable of lifting the spirit of our
nation by inspiring all South Africans to
contribute to positive change, become
involved and start doing – because a nation
of people who care deeply for one another
and the environment in which they live is
good for everyone.
This is the dawn of a nation
rising to the challenge.

come home to a cup of

warm heart
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Section 1

The Bigger
Picture
As the custodian of the Nation Brand, Brand
South Africa’s purpose is to promote a cohesive
brand image and message of the country.
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About Brand South Africa
The Brand South Africa Trust (Brand South Africa) was established in 2002 in
terms of the Trust Property Control Act No.57 of 1988, as amended. Brand
South Africa is further listed as a Schedule 3A Public Entity in terms of the
Public Finance Management Act No.1 of 1999 (PFMA).
Brand South Africa reports to the Presidency (Minister in the
Presidency) as its Executive Authority, and from which it receives
its annual budget since June 2019. Prior to this, Brand South Africa
reported to the Minister of Communications. It aims to support
the National Priorities and Outcomes as detailed in the National
Development Plan, Vision 2030, and the aligned Medium Term
Strategic Framework (MTSF), specifically in support of South
Africa’s National Objectives of inclusive economic growth, job
creation, poverty alleviation, and social cohesion.
The 2018/2019 Annual Performance Plan reflects the performance
indicators, annual and quarterly targets and budget allocations for
performance against the strategic goals, strategic objectives, and
Strategic Objective targets reflected in the Strategic Plan, which
outlines the high-level strategic framework of Brand South Africa
as follows:

PURPOSE AND PRIMARY OBJECTIVE
In terms of the Trust Deed, the Board of Brand South Africa
provides strategic direction and leadership to Brand South Africa
to ensure its long-term sustainability and impact; and in order
to fulfil its responsibilities, the Board is supported by the Chief
Executive Officer and management team who implement the
Board-approved strategic plan and policies.
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In terms of these objectives, Brand South Africa aims to:
Make an indirect contribution to economic growth, job creation,
poverty alleviation, and social cohesion by encouraging local and
foreign investment, tourism, and trade through the promotion of
Brand South Africa.
This aim will be achieved as Brand South Africa fulfils its mandate:
To manage South Africa’s Nation Brand reputation in order to
improve the country’s global attractiveness and competitiveness.
The Brand South Africa mandate is delivered through two strategic
programmes, namely:
1.
2.

Brand Marketing and Reputation Management
Stakeholder Relationships

VALUES

•

•

•

Developing and articulating a South African Nation Brand
identity that will advance South Africa’s long-term positive
reputation and global competitiveness;
Seeking the involvement and cooperation of various
stakeholders in building awareness and the image of the
Nation Brand domestically and internationally; and
Seeking to build individual alignment to the Nation Brand,
pride and patriotism amongst South Africans.
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Brand South Africa

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE AS AT 31 MARCH 2019

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Executive PA to CEO
Khomotso Phasha (C3)

CEO
Dr KLM Makhubela (F1)

Manager in Office of the CEO
Thabiso Motau (D4)

Chief Marketing Officer
(Vacant) (E4)

COUNTRY MANAGERS (X3)
GM Marketing
Sithembile Ntombela (D4)

Marketing Manager
Tshepiso Malele (D3)

GM Communications
Thoko Modise (D4)

Activations Manager
Rabia Metedad (D3)

GM Stakeholder Relations
Mpumi Mabuza (D4)

GM Research
Dr Petrus de Kock (D4)

Comms Officer International
Tsabeng Nthite (D1)

Comms Officer Domestic
Ntombi Ntanzi (D1)

Digital Specialist
Thandolwenkosi Mketsu (D1)
Activations Officer
Keineloe Phakathi (C4)

Filled
Vacant
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GM Global Markets
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CHINA - Vacant
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US - Mudunwazi Baloyi (D4)
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Toni Gumede (D3)

Relationship Consultant
Lerato Legodi (D1)

Strategic Relationship Manager
Business
George Khoza (D3)

Programme Liaison:
Global Markets
Jimmy Ranamane (D2)
Strategic Relationship
Manager Civil Society
Pumeza Ceza (D3)

Relationship Consultant
Anele Ngwenya (D1)

Graphic Designer
Brian Mthembu (C4)

Marketing & Activations
Co-ordinator
(Vacant) (C2)
Executive PA to CMO
Jabu Madonsela (C3)

Research Manager
(Vacant) (D3)

Coordinator: Markets
Lerato Zikalala (C4)

Communications Assistant
Phindile Maduna (C2)
Admin & Traffic
ADMINISTRATION
& TRAFFIC
Mokgadi
Mashapa
(C2)
Mokgadi
Mashapa
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Chief Financial Officer
Nadine Thomas (E3)

Finance Manager
Kgomotso Seripe (D4)

Director: Corporate Services
Dr Krishnee Kissoonduth (E3)

Supply Chain Manager
(Vacant) (D3)

Senior Accountant
(Vacant) (D2)

Supply Chain Officer
Ntiyiso Masuluke (C4)

Accountant
Sfiso Hlongwane (C3)

Supply Chain Administrator
Velly Thwala (C1)

Accountant
(Vacant) (C2)

Manager: IT
Tebogo Gaokgorwe (D4)

Director: Governance, Legal and Secretariat
Adv Sifiso Nyoni (E3)

Human Capital Manager
Lwandile Masango (D2)

Executive Assistant: SP & PM
Dineo Choane (C4)

Corporate Legal Manager
Bafana Makhubo (D4)

HC Administrator
Lesedi Khalo (C4)

Senior Network Administrator
Patrick Mathole (C3)

Assistant Board Secretary
Twitwi Rasebopye (C4)

Receptionist
Ntombi Ralijiji (B1)

Cleaners (X2)
Driver/Messenger
Jimmy Modiba (B2)

PA to CFO
Roelien Rosslee (C2)

Veronica Weto
Johanna Mofokeng (A2)

PA to Director GL & BS
Kholiwe Mosiea (C2)
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Minister’s Foreword
As the custodian of the Nation Brand, promoting our country in a positive
manner as a means to advancing its long term reputation, remains a critical
strategic position for Brand South Africa.
It is with great pleasure that I present to you Brand South
Africa’s Annual Report for the financial year 2018/19.
The year under review saw the renewal and revival of
the country brand. It was also a year when we celebrated
the centenaries of our struggle stalwarts, Mama Sisulu
and Tata Mandela. In May 2018, President Ramaphosa
unveiled a statue of Madiba at the United Nations
General Assembly in New York, in honour of the
Mandela centenary.
Quoting his speech on that day, the President said:
we recall with great appreciation and gratitude, the
leading role of the United Nations in championing
the struggle of the South African people against
apartheid, and in calling for the release of Nelson
Mandela and other political prisoners. President
Mandela firmly believed that the United Nations
was the most valuable and effective instrument
for the advancement of peace, development and
equality that humanity had conceived. We trust that
this statue will remain a constant reminder to the
international community of the dedication of Nelson
Mandela to the mission of the United Nations and a
constant affirmation of South Africa’s commitment

10
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to contribute to a better world for all.
The country held several global events that positively
positioned South Africa as a credible host and
destination of choice on the world stage. These included
the 10th BRICS Summit, which saw international heads
of state, business leaders, civil society and academics
descend on South Africa. These platforms improve
relations and perceptions about us, that not only
contribute to the economy but reinforce who we are
as the welcoming diverse nation, we are known to
be worldwide. Building bridges across the continent
strengthens our global competitiveness as a country.
We also hosted the International Telecommunication
Union (ITU) World that was aimed at delivering
economic development and fostering social good
through digital solutions.
One of the highlights of the year has to be the inaugural
South Africa Investment Conference, under the theme
‘Accelerating Growth by Building Partnerships’. The
Conference was a commitment made by President
Ramaphosa in his first state of the nation address, to raise
at least R1.2 trillion in new investments into the country
over five years, to promote investment opportunities and
create jobs.

Highlights
One highlight of the year was to support the President’s inaugural South Africa Investment Conference,
under the theme ‘Accelerating Growth by Building Partnerships’

1

Another highlight was the Nation Brand forum that was hosted in October with the objective of
promoting cohesive brand identity and image.

Brand South Africa hosted the 3rd Annual Nation Brand
Forum. This platform is important in driving messaging on
how we as stakeholders across government, business and
civil society, represent and communicate in a cohesive and
coherent manner about the Nation Brand. This contributes
in how we influence positive perceptions about the
country. This year’s theme focused on how the sporting
fraternity and our creative industry can be used to tell the
story of South Africa to strengthen our global positioning.
It goes without saying that the world recognises who we
are and what we as a people are capable of, through
these industries.

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

In fostering the advocacy role that South Africans living
abroad have, to reaffirm South Africa as a country that
inspires new ways, Brand South Africa continued its Global
South Africans programme in various countries around
the world. These included engagements in Ghana, India,
Australia, France, Germany, the United Kingdom and
the US.

It is important to acknowledge the contribution of my
predecessors, Minister Ayanda Dlodlo and Minister
Nomvula Mokonyane, for the leadership they provided to
the organisation.

This annual report is therefore a reflection on how Brand
South Africa has continuously found inspiring ways to
collaboratively work with stakeholders to position and
promote the Nation Brand.

In the year ahead, Brand South Africa will continue its
efforts as the country celebrates 25 years of democracy.
As the country embraces the sixth Administration, it is
imperative now more than ever to enhance and lead
with efficiency through the transitions. It is time for new
opportunities that inspire new ways and recommitment to
a competitive South Africa we all aspire to have.
APPRECIATION

To the Board of Trustees, thank you for your guidance.
Your contribution in supporting the team to achieve their
objectives for the year is admirable.
My greatest thanks goes to the staff and leadership at Brand
South Africa, for their continued commitment in driving
the mandate of promoting the Nation Brand domestically
and internationally.
To the various stakeholders, your partnerships have helped
amplify the vision of Brand South Africa to be “A Nation
Brand that inspires its people and is admired globally”.
– I thank you

Minister Jackson Mthembu
Minister in the Presidency

Deputy Minister Thembi Siweya
Deputy Minister in the Presidency
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Chairperson’s Report
Brand South Africa has continued to execute its mandate to position South Africa
as a reliable and attractive investment destination on a range of international
platforms, including at the 10th BRICS Summit hosted by South Africa in
Johannesburg, the inaugural South African Investment Conference and the
World Economic Forum annual meeting in Davos (Switzerland).
In addition to this, Brand South Africa has fulfilled its
mandate in the past year by working with, and through a
range of stakeholders to position the country positively,
and to encourage social cohesion and Nation Brand
advocacy amongst South Africans.
Brand South Africa continued with its set task to reach
a range of organisations through its Nation Brand
Alignment Training with the objective of guiding them
through the nuances of marketing a Nation Brand on
international platforms.

Some of the highlights from the 2018/19 financial
year include:
A Cohesive approach when promoting and
marketing the Nation Brand
•

12
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Brand South Africa continued with its set task to to
reach a range of organisations through its Nation
Brand Alignment Training with the objective of
guiding them through them through the nuances of
marketing a Nation Brand on international platforms.
The training reached over 180 institutions.

A step in the
right direction

on

Highlights
1

President Ramaphosa delivered the keynote address at the South Africa Investment
Seminar within the margins of the World Economic Forum Annual Meeting in Davos,
which was attended by over 80 guests and widely reported in various media domestic
and international platforms, including SABC News and eNCA.

Enhanced relations with stakeholders towards the promotion of the Nation Brand reputation
•

•
•

Brand South Africa established a relationship with the National Business Initiative (NBI) and engaged NBI member companies
on issues that are affecting the performance of the Nation Brand as well as the outcomes of the 2018 Investment Conference.
Collaborations with Business Associations are critical for the organisation and will be prioritised in the coming year.
Brand South Africa concluded a collaborative agreement with Proudly South African (Proudly SA) which resulted in a number
of collaborations, such as a media tour.
In line with the organisation’s mandate to encourage active citizenship, Brand South Africa collaborated with the South African
Council of Churches in hosting the 3rd National Convention of South Africa. This is an initiative that seeks to support a vibrant
democracy based on the Constitution.

Ms Khanyisile Kweyama
Chairperson
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report
During the year under review a number of thought leadership articles
focusing on land, active citizenry, and sports were produced and
disseminated on multiple platforms.
In the continued efforts of empowering stakeholders with
the Nation Brand performance understanding, a number of
stakeholder engagements were undertaken in the past year.
These included sessions with strategic state institutions
such as DIRCO, the dti, provinces and cities. There were
also sessions aimed at empowering business and civil
society stakeholders.
Brand South Africa developed a unique research
segmentation model for the South African society which
won two awards at the Southern Africa Market Research
Association in 2018.
In the past year the marketing strategies that were
employed in enhancing Nation Brand awareness and
image included Brand South Africa’s flagship programme
called Play Your Part and Nation Brand positioning
marketing campaigns that showcased the skill of South
African people in entrepreneurship.
Business also played its part by collaborating with
Brand South Africa in promoting investments through a
campaign called CEOs Know and SA Inc. The CEOs Know,
an endorsement campaign told an inspiring story of why
investors choose to invest in South Africa. The campaign
was aired in targeted markets that are aligned to South
Africa’s investment drive.

14
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Highlights
The Play Your Part programme was implemented in schools under the message banner “Play Your Part,
turn your ideas into currency” which aligns with to the priorities set out by the Presidency. It is pleasing
to note that the awareness of the organisation has reach levels of 39%, an increase from 19% three years
ago. Play Your Part awareness also grew to 40% from 36%, and lastly, the awareness of the country slogan
increased from 39% (2017) to 44%.
Play Your Part was implemented in schools under the
message banner “Play Your Part, turn your ideas into
currency” which aligns with the priorities set out by the
Presidency. It is pleasing to note that the national awareness
of the organisation is now 39% coming from 19% three years
ago. The Play Your Part awareness also grew to 40% from 36%
in 2017/18 and lastly the awareness of the country slogan
grew from 39% (2017) to 44%. These results are proof that
the work done by the organisation is being recognised and is
impactful. In promoting the Nation Brand, thought leadership
becomes a strategic tool of influencing perceptions.
During the year under review a number of thought leadership
articles focusing on land, active citizenry, and sports were
produced and disseminated on multiple platforms.
Communications was a hive of activity during the year under
review, due to the country hosting several international
conferences such as the International Telecommunication
Union (ITU) World, the 10th BRICS Summit and the inaugural
Investment Conference. Brand South Africa played a key
strategic role in the development and implementation of
Communication and Digital strategies.
These were focused on promoting and showcasing the
country’s strengths as an investment destination of choice.
Land reform was one of the drivers of negative news coverage
internationally. Brand South Africa was at the forefront
in developing integrated marketing and communication
strategies to ensure brand visibility and balanced reporting.
Brand South Africa forged ahead in developing relations with
members of the media by hosting, after a long time, several

1

sessions with the South African National Editors Forum,
as well as the Foreign Correspondents Association. As the
people responsible for news coverage, they are central in
shaping perceptions about the Nation Brand domestically
and internationally. Media partnership agreements were
also facilitated with BBC, CNN and CNBC Africa. These were
utilised to drive and promote positive messaging about
the country.
With regards to strategic platforms, such as the World
Economic Forum in Davos and the Mining Indaba in Cape
Town, Brand South Africa was responsible for integrated
marketing communication, and stakeholder strategies in
support of Team South Africa.
We would have never achieved what we did without our
partners in the spheres of government, business and civil
society. Some of the key collaborations included the dti’s
South African Premier Business Awards, BRICS Business
Forum, launch of the civil society manifesto with the South
African Council of Churches as well as the Nelson Mandela
Foundation in celebrating Madiba’s centenary year. To ensure
continuity and impact, the same integrated marketing and
communication strategies were also rolled out in key strategic
global markets including Brand South Africa’s offices in UK,
US and China.

Ms. Thulisile Manzini
Acting Chief Executive Officer
Annual Report 2018/19 | Brand South Africa
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Section 2

About the
Nation Brand
A New Dawn means finding our potential in
championing possibility. It means we need
to be brave enough to start conversations
that matter and build National Pride. The
Nation Brand is successful when it delivers a
coherent image and country message to its
domestic and international audiences.

16
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Understanding the Nation Brand
In today’s globalised and highly competitive world, individual countries
invariably operate as part of the ‘global value chain’
THE NATION BRAND IN CONTEXT
The Nation Brand seeks to present a coherent image
and country message to domestic and international
audiences. Research studies dedicated to identifying
the reputation standings of nations, or Nation Brands,
typically measure the reputation of a nation on six key
elements that make up the Nation Brand Hexagon. These
are investment, governance, people, culture, tourism,
and exports.

This means that the reputation of the Nation Brand is
determined by a multitude of activities driven by the
citizens, businesses, academic institutions, civil society,
and government institutions.

Investment
and
Immigration

Tourism

Exports

NATION
BRAND

People

Governance
Culture
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The list of attributes which have been tested through
reputational studies indicate that the reputation of a
nation really depends on much more than government
activity, policy, or leadership alone. A Nation Brand
encompasses all the attributes, strengths and innovations
that a nation offers the world in all of its spheres of
activity (business, arts, tourism, science, innovation,
infrastructure, manufacturing, and governance, to name
but a few).
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As such, building a Nation Brand becomes a collective
national effort that requires the nation’s understanding of
domestic trends, perceptions, and factors that impact on
pride and commitment from the citizens (of South Africa)
to the nation, and to the Nation Brand.

MANAGING THE NATION BRAND
In today’s globalised and highly competitive world,
individual countries invariably operate as part of the
‘global value chain’. Thus, it is imperative that nations
compete with one another not just for attention, but
more so to ensure that they earn the respect and trust
of each other. Brand management serves to ensure
the continuous enhancement of a country’s image and
reputation to attract investments and tourists. This
requires that all value chain players, be it competitors,
customers, or even observers, evaluate the nation as a
prospective partner to strengthen their own brand equity.
The aim of the Nation Brand, therefore, serves to
improve the image and reputation of the country and to
influence its economic activity.

2019 HIGHLIGHTS

Challenges
South Africa experienced major changes throughout this financial year,
but amid the intense challenges, South Africans have come to see the
positive impact of playing an active role in social cohesion and active
democracy.

Due to its complex and multifaceted nature, managing
the Nation Brand requires a considered and coordinated
effort among its stakeholders. Countries compete for
a share of voice in a crowded marketplace for inward
investment, trade exports, tourism, and skills attraction
and retention.

Economic Outlook

The Nation Brand organisation, thus, follow concepts
grounded in brand management literature such as,
brand identity, brand image, brand positioning, and
brand equity.

This environment analysis focuses on key themes and dynamics
in both the domestic and international environments that
Brand South Africa encountered as it executed its mandate.

South Africa experienced major changes throughout this
financial year, but amid the intense challenges, South
Africans have come to see the positive impact of playing
an active role in social cohesion and active democracy.
While much of this positive sentiment can be attributed
to the new president, South Africans, too, have been
influenced by an understanding that bravery and
championing strong leadership can yield positive results.

2

Political Outlook
The reputation of South Africa, however, continued to show a
decline, which measured negatively on the public perception of the
Nation Brand.
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ENVIRONMENTAL OVERVIEW

Key themes emerging from the international
environment analysis:

The journey of the Nation Brand during the period
under review took place in domestic and international
environments characterised by uncertainty and what one
could term – discontinuous continuity. In the domestic
context the theme of a ‘New Dawn’ was symbolic of
both continuity - and some discontinuity or change.
This environment analysis focuses on key themes
and dynamics in both the domestic and international
environments that Brand South Africa encountered as it
executed its mandate.

•
•

Brand South Africa’s operating environments during this
reporting period displayed significant signs of turbulence.

Key themes emerging from the domestic
environment analysis include:
•
•
•
•
•

20
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Public and Private Sector Governance under the
microscope
Initiating efforts to rebuild Trust
Tackling land, legacy and transformation issues
Rebuilding/reconstructing confidence
Mobilisation for economic growth and human/
societal development

•
•
•
•
•

Signs of Nation Brand reputation recovery
BRICS and the emergence of a recognised platform
of global governance
Enhanced policy uncertainty in ‘developed’ markets
Global trade system volatility – Trade Wars and
Economic Nationalism
Global economic slowdown and downside risks
Increased geopolitical friction and fragmentation
Dominant digital discourses – 4th Industrial
Revolution (4IR) and altered economic/societal/
political conditions

DOMESTIC ENVIRONMENT
The Nation Brand’s reputation in the domestic
environment did, like in the international environment
during the period under review, show signs of recovery.
During the year a main theme emerged pertaining partly
to the overall theme of this annual report being - a
‘New Dawn’. As noted above, the key themes or issues
that impacted on the reputation of the Nation Brand in
the domestic environment revolve around matters of
governance, accountability, and transparency.

It is on the latter point that the year under review
yielded two major insights, being:
1.

2.

South Africa ranks 2/102 nations in the Open Budget
Index. This indicates that South Africa is one of the
most transparent state/governance systems in the
world. It enhances the country’s reputation through
constitutional democracy which enables public
scrutiny.
However, this level of transparency, and
interventions such as the Zondo Commission of
Inquiry into State Capture, also allow for revelations
that cast doubt on the governance capability of
the state and consequently negatively affect the
reputation of the country.

Brand South Africa managed the duality by constantly
reinforcing the message that South Africa’s level of
transparency, and commitment to accountability in
a Constitutional Democracy, remains the key values of
the country.
The period under review also coincided with a preelection year and therefore public discourse was to a
large extent driven by election campaigns. The country’s
governance capabilities and corruption issues took centre
stage in public debate. While the domestic environment
was characterised by a much more positive or optimistic
outlook since President Ramaphosa came into power,
unfortunately, signs began to show that confidence in
governance capability and public institutions, started
waning towards the end of the period under review.

Brand South Africa’s domestic perceptions
monthly surveys found that public perceptions
of the following issues were either stable or in
decline:

Examples of domestic interventions that
enhanced the reputation of the country:

•

•

•

•

•

Confidence in the government’s ability to fight
corruption remained stable between February
to April 2018. In this regard, positive perceptions
relating to the belief that South Africa has strong
institutions and a court system to hold both the
public and private sectors to account in cases of
alleged corruption peaked in February 2018 at 69%.
However, this retreated to 61% by April 2018.
Load Shedding and Eskom governance challenges
had a negative impact on the public and investor
community.
State Capture and other commissions of inquiry
revelations also impacted negatively on perceptions
and in the held confidence of South Africa’s
governance capabilities.
South Africa’s bleak GDP outlook and land
expropriation without compensation particularly
dominated public discourse and created an
environment laden with speculation and some
negative sentiments. Despite this, in general,
confidence levels remained relatively high.

•

•
•

The Presidential Investment Drive and Investment
Conference
The revised Mining Charter and willingness of the
private sector to engage with government
Commitments by the government to engage with
structural reforms in a systematic manner
SONA 2018’s commitment to improving the ‘Doing
Business’ Environment by aiming to move South
Africa into the top fifty of the World Bank’s Ease of
Doing Business Index.

2

Despite this, South Africa can claim it has one of the
most transparent state systems in the world (e.g. 2/102
nations in the Open Budget Index). This enhances its
reputation, however, on the other hand, all the negative
issues revealed by the commissions of inquiry, affected
perceptions, by questioning the governance capability
and ethics in both the South African private and public
sectors. Please refer to the Domestic Perceptions
Research, and Nation Brand Performance sections to
review more specific examples and indicators pertaining
to these issues.
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INTERNATIONAL ENVIRONMENT
As indicated above, the journey of the Nation Brand
during the period under review took place in domestic and
international environments characterised by uncertainty
and what one could term – discontinuous continuity. In the
international context continuity - and some discontinuity
manifested in turbulence in the international trading system
due to rising economic nationalism and USA - China trade
war dynamics.
Significantly, the 2018 period shows a slow recovery of the
Nation Brand’s reputation after 2017 when a combination
of revelations of unethical behaviour, corruption, and
state capture impacted negatively on perceptions and the
reputation of the Nation Brand. As found by Brand South
Africa’s international investor perceptions research, the
reputation recovers in three major regions, being: Americas,
Europe, and Asia, while the African continent became more
cautious towards South Africa.

South Africa Country Reputation Index

2016

60
69
Africa & Middle East

51
38
18

Americas

2018
2016
2017

31

2018
2016

19

2017

16
Asia

32
28

2018
2016
2017

11
Europe

2017

26

2018

Source: Brand South Africa International Investor Perceptions – aggregate reputation score (out of 100) per region (2018)
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It is notable that between 2017 and 2018, the reputation
of the Nation Brand improved in the Americas, Europe,
and Asia.

Driven to a large extent by economic factors, the position
of South Africa in the Brand Finance Nation Brand
Valuation report declined.

The investment drive, interventions to unblock dialogue
between the mining industry and government, and the
proceedings of South Africa’s SOEs contributed positively
to enhancing the country’s reputation. Additionally,
several global engagements such as the BRICS Summit
hosted by South Africa, the UN General Assembly, state
visits and engagements at multilateral levels, such as the
AU, SADC, IORA and FOCAC, had a positive impact on
the reputation of the country.

2017

Brand South Africa’s Nation Brand Performance
Monitoring indicates that, while some reputation
recovery took place during 2018, the Nation Brand’s
global valuation and ranking was affected by a weak GDP
outlook and waning investor activity and confidence. The
two indicators that shed light on this dynamic include the
Brand Finance – Nation Brand Valuation report and the
Bloom Consulting Country Brand Report.
Brand Finance, an independent branded business
valuation consultancy, annually updates research
pertaining to the valuation of Nation Brands. Essentially
it provides a Nation Brand valuation as a composite
measure of the relative ‘market value’ that can be
associated with a Nation Brand such as South Africa.
This study, therefore, provides valuation understanding,
however, it does not deliver granular insight into the
reputational advantages or challenges South Africa face
in international markets.

•
•

Rank = 43/100
Nation Brand Value = USD 222bn

2018
•
•
•

Rank = 49/100
Nation Brand Value = USD 207bn
A 7% decline from 2017

2

The Bloom Consulting Country Brand Ranking research
focuses only on two dimensions of a Nation Brand’s
reputation/attractiveness including, Tourism and Trade.
Furthermore, this research is not based on actual
research surveys, but is based on algorithmic analysis of
dimensions related to investment attractiveness, tourism
attractiveness, and exports.
Nevertheless, according to the Bloom Country Brand
Rankings, South Africa performs relatively well compared
to its regional peers, but performance in terms of
attracting FDI remains a challenge.

Main findings:
•
•
•

South Africa remains the top Country/Nation Brand
on the African continent
South Africa improves its scores in two indicators,
ie., Social Media and Digital Demand
South Africa loses momentum due to a lower
Country Brand Score and slower FDI entry into
the market

Annual Report 2018/19 | Brand South Africa

23

Africa Rank
# Variation

World Rank

CBS Rating

1
1.

-

South Africa

37

BBB

2.

-

Nigeria

40

AAA

Morocco

47

A

3. +1
4.

-1

Egypt

51

A

5.

-

Ghana

57

AA

6. +3

Zambia

67

A

7. +4

Algeria

68

AAA

8.

-1

Mozambique

70

BBB

9.

-3

Tanzania, United Rep.

73

BBB

10.

-

Tunisia

80

A

Source: Bloom Consulting – Country Brand Report 2018
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The policy position on Land Expropriation Without
Compensation was a particular issue that had a significant
impact on global reporting about South Africa, during the
period under review. In international markets, this led to
questions regarding property rights and concerns regarding
the protection of investments. Brand South Africa in
partnership and collaboration with key institutions such as
the Presidency, the GCIS, the dti, Treasury and relevant line
function departments, developed comprehensive messaging
and communication interventions to contextualize the
policy change and to reaffirm South Africa’s stance on the
matter. In this regard, it was put across that while this is a
much needed critical transformation initiative, the Nation
Brand would manage this process in a structured and
disciplined, and predictable manner.
In terms of the broader operating environment, it is
critical to note that the theme of discontinuous continuity
manifested most clearly in policy uncertainty in ‘developed’
markets, in cases such as Brexit and global trade system
volatility brought about by Trade Wars and Economic
Nationalism. It is within such an environment that the
Nation Brand had to calibrate its position carefully to
enhance Nation Brand visibility and competitiveness in an
increasingly volatile global environment. Closely associated
with these dynamics, was a global economic slowdown and
downside risks for emerging markets coupled with increased
geopolitical friction and conflict.
In the international environment, the USA’s decision
to impose tariffs on South African steel and aluminium
increased trade war rhetoric and actions taken by the EU,
China and the USA, stands to have direct and indirect
consequences for the Nation Brand. To this end, the 10th
BRICS Summit which was hosted by South Africa in July
2018, presented a major opportunity to share South Africa’s
investment drive message with BRICS partners.

In terms of the broader African regional environment,
the Nation Brand crossed a critical milestone when
South Africa formally signed up as a member of the
Continental Free Trade Area Agreement.
This underlines the fact that South Africa, a major
economy on the continent, fully supports and
endorses continental integration and enhances intraAfrican trade, and closer cooperation among peer
African states.
In the European environment, election results in
several countries brought anti-EU, anti-immigration
parties to a high level of influence on policy and EU
member states’ policy direction. As a bloc with major
investments in South Africa, careful monitoring of
developments in the EU has been necessary.

PROGRAMME 2: BRAND MARKETING
AND REPUTATION MANAGEMENT

Listed below are some of the highlights from
the research activities for the period under
review:
DOMESTIC PERCEPTIONS RESEARCH
AWARDS
A major highlight for the 2018/19 period, pertains to
the Domestic Perceptions Research project which was
presented with two awards at the annual Southern
African Market Research Association conference
( June 2018). Brand South Africa won these research
awards for the development of a unique bespoke
segmentation model for the South African society
that delivered insight on ten behaviour groups.
These behaviour groups indicate that South Africans
have much in common in terms of broad attitude,
perception, and behaviours.

2

2

ENHANCED UNDERSTANDING OF THE
NATION BRAND PERFORMANCE
During the 2018/19 period, the research unit
continued to deliver projects, analysis products,
insights and strategic environment analyses to support
both internal and external stakeholders. According to
the annual performance plan, the research function
delivered against the following core performance
indicators:
•
Enhanced understanding of Nation Brand
Performance (entailing analysis of external
indicators, indices)
•
Domestic perceptions research (encompassing
both qualitative and quantitative research
interventions)
•
International Investor Perceptions research
(targeting sixteen markets)
•
The South African Competitiveness Forum
•
SA Inc research

1. Over-all best Research Award for Brand South Africa Behaviour group research
2. Kantar Innovation Award for Brand South Africa Behaviour group research
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BRICS BRAND DEVELOPMENT RESEARCH REPORT

DOMESTIC PERCEPTIONS RESEARCH

During the 2018/19 period the research unit also released a special research
report on BRICS. This report was released at the 10th BRICS Summit hosted
by South Africa during July 2018. The report entitled – The BRICS brand:
from economic concept to institution of global governance - chronicles the
development of BRICS from an informal club of nations, to the current time
where it is gaining increasing global recognition as unique new multilateral
platform of global governance.

Brand South Africa’s domestic perceptions research is aimed at developing
insight into issues that impact positively and negatively on the reputation, and
perceptions, South Africans have of the Nation Brand. The research is based on
both qualitative and quantitative methodologies, including:
•
Annual Omnibus Survey: +/- n2500 respondents – fully nationally
representative
•
Monthly online/mobile surveys: +/- n350 respondents per month
•
Focus groups: 12 per year
•
In-depth interviews: 10 per year
Brand South Africa managed to gather insight into the following, through its
research interventions:
•
Unique behaviour group analysis of the South African society based on a
bespoke segmentation model developed for the organisation
•
Insight into South Africa’s evolving identity
•
Insight into drivers of Pride, Social Cohesion and Active Citizenship
•
Analysis of perspectives on land reform in South Africa
•
Levels of trust in key institutions
•
Broad perceptions that impact on behaviour and the reputation of the
Nation Brand among South Africans
•
Tracking the awareness of Brand South Africa’s initiatives
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THE TEN IDENTIFIED BEHAVIOUR GROUPS
Percentage indicates size of the behaviour group

13.7%
12.1%

9.8%

Importance

9.4%

2

3

8.6%

4

2

9.5%

8.8%

1

12.4%

5

6

7

8.0%

7.7%

9

10

8

Rank

1. Independent
Humanists

2. Political
Supporters

3. Supporters 4. Accountability
of Heritage
Advocates

5. Celebrators
of Achievement

6. Proud
Democrats

7. Activist
Supporters

8. Positive
Enablers

9. Cautious
Optimists

10. Uncritical
Loyalists

Source: Brand South Africa Domestic Perceptions Research Annual Omnibus survey (2018)
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FIVE MIND-SETS REGARDING LAND EXPROPRIATION WITHOUT COMPENSATION
Thirty-one Land Expropriation Without Compensation (LEWC) statements identified five groups or mindsets.

Group 1

Group 2

Opportunists

Optimists

Running out of patience and
getting increasingly desperate to
make a living. LEWC offers an
opportunity to acquire land and
money. The opportunity is
currently envisaged for basic
needs such as housing and
employment with little future
growth prospects.

Group 3

Sceptics

High levels of confidence and trust The key focus area for this group is
the economy and the disruptions
in the government of the day and
LEWC will bring about in society.
especially President Cyril
The group has a strong financial
Ramaphosa which sets aside most
fears about the LEWC policy. The focus and anything done should be
towards the improvement of the
group feels that LEWC offers a
economy as that will bring about
range of new possibilities and is
better living standards, education
confident about land reform in
and as a consequence job
general. The government has
opportunities. To take land is wrong.
strong support to execute
programme correctly and fairly.

n = 488 (19%)

n = 534 (21%)

n = 504 (20%)

Source: Brand South Africa Domestic Perceptions Research Annual Omnibus survey (2018)
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Group 4

Group 5

Disillusioned

Individualists

Distanced themselves from the
political front, feeling
disillusioned and wounded about
the direction the country has
taken because of political leaders,
corruption and mismanagement.
There is very little trust afforded
to politicians and government to
do the right thing and LEWC is
just one example. Will consider
switching to another party.

Although reserved about the
ability of government to
effectively implement LEWC, the
group i s strongly focused on the
difference the individual can make
and pays little attention the
broader national or social issues,
LEWC as an example. Although
LEWC could be positive it is about
the role and accountability of the
individuals involved.

n = 472 (19%)

n = 511 (20%)

The results clearly show that South Africans are, in
general, supportive of the initiative. There are, however,
concerns that the method of implementation will have
a decided impact on the economy and reputation of
the country, if this leads to societal fragmentation and
negative economic consequences. The manner in which
land reform is administered in the coming years stands
to have a direct impact on Social Cohesion, as well as
citizens perceptions of the Nation Brand and, thus, its
reputation. This issue will additionally have an impact
on the international reputation and positioning of the
Nation Brand.

FOCUS GROUPS
In an effort to develop deeper qualitative insight into
factors that impact the attitudes, behaviours, and
perceptions of South Africans, Brand South Africa
implemented focus groups with the following themes,
during the 2018/19 period:
•
Generation Y – to understand drivers of identity
and behaviour
•
Media – to understand the perceptions of South
African people on the local media
•
Race and discrimination – to develop deeper
insight into the perceptions of race relations and
discrimination in South African society
•
A review of Brand South Africa’s marketing materials
– to test audience responses and obtain feedback
to Brand South Africa’s audio-visual and related
marketing materials

The insights that were forthcoming from both the
quantitative and qualitative research interventions were
utilised in Brand South Africa’s environmental analysis,
for advice and feedback to stakeholders, communication
and planning marketing initiatives.

MONITORING OF NATION BRAND
PERFORMANCE
The purpose of Brand South Africa’s Nation Brand
Performance monitoring is to track indicators that
shed light on the performance of the country in the
following realms of activity that all have an impact on
the reputation and profile of the Nation Brand. These
are third-party indices and research instruments that
shape or impact either negatively or positively on
perceptions of the country. This section profiles some
important issues and implications that emanate from
these monitoring instruments during the 2018/19 period.
While findings from the Nation Brand Performance
monitoring was shared extensively with stakeholders in
the public, private- and civil-society sectors, these were
also shared with the Presidency for the development of
the Investment Case for South Africa, the Presidential
Investment drive and the investment conference which
took place during October 2018.
The following highlights, strengths and weaknesses
can be identified from monitoring the Nation
Brand Performance.

Nation Brand Performance strengths:

Open Budget Index - 2/102
Making South Africa one of the most
transparent state systems in the world

World Economic Forum

2

Financial System - 18/140
Budget Transparency - 27/140
Airport Connectivity – 39/140
Innovation Capability – 46/140

World Press Freedom Index – 39/180

Ibrahim Index of African Governance
Protection against religious and
ethnic discrimination – 1/54
Capacity of Election Monitoring
Agencies – 1/54

World Bank Ease of Doing Business
Protection of Investors – 23/190
World Bank Logistics
Performance Index – 33/160
The above-noted examples show that the Nation Brand
has unique assets to leverage, in order to enhance its
reputation. These include, clear capabilities in innovation,
infrastructure, governance and government transparency.
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However, it is also clear that revelations of corruption
and unethical behaviour in both the private and public
sectors during this period had a negative impact on the
overall governance ratings of South Africa.
•
In the Ibrahim Index of African Governance (IIAG),
the country retreats with one rank to attain the
position of 7/54 nations. This is the weakest position
South Africa has ever occupied on the IIAG;
•
In terms of skills, the WEF ranks South Africa 84/140
and very low for health, at 125/140;
•
South Africa’s corruption perceptions’ score
remained quite stable at 43/100 in 2018. The score
translates into a ranking of 73/180 nations measured
through the CPI, the country’s ranking in 2017 was
71/180. While this stable outlook is encouraging, the
country’s overall ranking/corruption score remains
a cause for concern;
•
According to the EY Africa Attractiveness Survey
2018, the data indicates that it is the first time that
South Africa shares a top position in attracting FDI
with Morocco. This illustrates the need for robust
intervention in positioning South Africa as an
attractive and competitive investment destination.

The major concern that emerged from the 2018/19
period’s Nation Brand Performance monitoring, pertains
to a weakening governance profile of the Nation Brand.
The perceptions of governance capability in African and
Emerging Market nations play a major role in shaping the
reputation of such nations.
As outlined in the environmental analysis section, South
Africa can claim it has one of the most transparent state
systems in the world (e.g. 2/102 nations in the Open
Budget Index). This enhances reputation, however,
on the other hand, all the negative revelations by
the commissions of inquiry, affected perceptions by
questioning governance capabilities and ethics in both
the South African private and public sectors. South
Africa’s reputation and Nation Brand performance
constructs reveal that dwindling trust in societal
institutions is a cause for concern, globally, as well as in
South Africa.

During the year under review, the research unit had, for
example, prepared a special analysis of trust indicators in
the Brand South Africa Domestic Perceptions Research,
as well as external indicators such as the Edelman Trust
Barometer (ETB). Over time, the ETB has discovered that
the power of trust is a key indicator that is connected
to its forward-looking nature. The ETB has furthermore
found that there is a strong link between Trust and Risk.
Essentially, reputation or favourability is backwardslooking metrics, while trust is a projection.
In the case of South Africa, it is clear from the data below
that Government and media institutions have the lowest
trust level among South Africans, while Business and
NGOs have the highest levels of trust among
South Africans.
The figures below were extracted from the 2019 Edelman
Trust Barometer Global Report with a specific focus on
South Africa’s performance.
Dynamics and levels of trust in South African institutions
indicate from the above-mentioned data, that:
1. NGOs are the most trusted institutions in South
Africa at a score of 60, improving with ten points from
2018;
2. Business is trust neutral, albeit quite strong at a score
of 58, improving with five points from 2018;
3. Media is distrusted by South Africans, with a trust
score of 41, improving with six points from 2018;
4. Government is the least trusted institution among
South Africans with a score of 21, improving with
seven points from 2018.

Source: Edelman Trust Barometer – 2019
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Brand South Africa’s Domestic Perceptions Research shows that of the government institutions tested, the following are the most and least trusted, as illustrated in the image below.

Trust completely

Do not know

SASSA – South African Social Security Agency

29%

2%

Department of Education

28%

1%

Department of Health

25%

1%

SANDF – Souh African National Defence Force

24%

5%

The Constitutional Court

23%

4%

Department of Home Affairs

22%

1%

Eskom

22%

1%

Department of Water and Sanitation

21%

2%

SARS – South African Revenue Services

21%

5%

The Magistrate and High Courts

21%

3%

The Presidency

19%

2%

Department of Trade and Industry, the FTI

19%

7%

Public Protector

19%

5%

Parliament of South Africa

18%

2%

Auditor-General

15%

6%

Your provincial government

15%

2%

National Treasury

15%

8%

SAPS – South African Police Service

14%

1%

Your local or district municipality

14%

1%

SOEs – State–Owned Enterprises

12%

8%

2

Source: Brand South Africa Domestic Perceptions Research, Omnibus Survey 2018, Respondents n2500

As Brand South Africa concludes this financial year it is evident that regaining trust in both the public- and private sector among South Africans will be a key objective moving forward.
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INTERNATIONAL INVESTOR PERCEPTIONS RESEARCH

INTERVENTION 1 (QUARTER 1)

The investor perceptions research findings, during the period under review,
point to a reputation recovery for South Africa during 2018. However, there are
major findings to take cognisance of in terms of the profiling, marketing and
positioning of the Nation Brand in international markets.

Theme: Consultation with EU investors and business stakeholders in South
Africa

At a high level the findings indicate:
•
Levels of familiarity with South Africa remain low – especially in Asia;
•
Levels of trust and favourability towards South Africa remain low which
erodes investor confidence;
•
Specific concerns regarding South Africa as investment destination
include: policy uncertainty, crime, and corruption;
•
However, South Africa’s diversified economy, geographical position, and
access it provides to the African region remains attractive features; and
•
Infrastructure and related capabilities are also seen as attractive features of
the South African economy.
The international investor perceptions project delivers insights that enable
Brand South Africa and its stakeholders to engage with international markets in
an informed manner.

SOUTH AFRICAN COMPETITIVENESS FORUM
Two interventions under the SACF programme during this financial year
allowed Brand South Africa an opportunity to develop deeper insight into
perceptions of the Nation Brand from European business operating in South
Africa, and perceptions of the Nation Brand from the South African and
African environments.
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Large numbers of diverse investors from the EU are active in the South African
market. This SACF consultation session focused on gathering deeper insight
into the experience of business from the EU environment in South Africa. As
an organisation that focuses of the marketing of the South African Nation
Brand abroad, Brand South Africa requires input from stakeholders to refine its
strategy.
Objectives of the session included:
•
Experience of doing business in the South African market (strengths and
challenges);
•
Recommendations in terms of managing the reputation of the Nation
Brand in the EU context;
•
Issues to be addressed to improve the attractiveness of South Africa as a
business/investment destination, source of exports, and trade partner in
the African environment; and
•
Identify stakeholders willing to participate in the Brand South Africa
CEOs Know campaign focused on gathering endorsement messages from
business stakeholders.

INTERVENTION 2 (QUARTER 2)
Pan-African Nation Brand University Dialogue in partnership with UNISA
Theme: Interrogating the Pan-African Nation Brand: re- and deconstructing state capacity and the stories we tell to market the African
Brand reality
Among others, some of the key objectives of the conference included:
•
Identifying key issues and practical steps to be followed up regarding
collaboration between academia, industry and government: propose
projects and interventions;
•
Identifying opportunities and lessons from contributions made by
international speakers and delegates; and
•
Identifying key lessons and implications the Continental Free Trade
Area Agreement has for marketing the African Nation Brands and
opportunities within an integrated market region.

2

11 September – Delegates at the Pan-African Nation Brand University Dialogue

Opening and Welcome to Pan-African Nation Brand University Dialogue
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IMPROVED NATION BRAND
REPUTATION AND PERCEPTIONS
AMONG SOUTH AFRICANS
Play Your Part
Play Your Part (PYP) is a Brand South Africa championed,
nationwide movement created to inspire, empower and
celebrate active citizenship in South Africa. Its objective
is to lift the spirit of our nation by inspiring all South
Africans to contribute to positive change, become
involved and start doing. Over the past eight years, the
Play Your Part Programme has gained considerable
traction domestically and now boasts national awareness
levels of 44% in 2018, coming from a base of 6% in 2012.
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During the fiscal 2018/19, Brand South Africa set
to deliver impactful PYP school activations in all of
South Africa’s nine provinces, aligned with improving
perception and the reputation of the Nation Brand
among South Africans. Brand South Africa successfully
delivered activations at various school’s representative
of all nine provinces. The activations were anchored
and executed in alignment with the conceptual theme
“Turning your ideas into currency” and promoting
entrepreneurial spirit among learners. The objective was
to showcase and inspire learners to start thinking about
entrepreneurial opportunities. The programme was
implemented in collaboration with the Goliath Brothers
who use comedy to deliver this masterclass.
Brand South Africa reached several schools countrywide,
impacting over 6000 learners. The PYP programme,
through the school’s activations, gained exposure through
various platforms such as web, social media, print, TV and
radio reaching an audience of approximately 7 million.

CONSTITUTIONAL AWARENESS ACTIVATIONS
Brand South Africa is identified within the MTSF as a
delivery partner for Outcome 14, which focuses on Nation
Building and Social Cohesion. Brand South Africa has
been tasked with creating awareness of the South African
constitution amongst the country’s citizens. The objective
of the programme is to promote the values contained in
the Constitution, through the use of marketing platforms
and activations. The programme aims to broaden the
knowledge of the Constitution, foster Constitutional values
and leverage these values to encourage active citizenship
amongst South Africans.

Another key activation is the Bassline Africa Day Festival
which was hosted in collaboration with Bassline, the
Department of Arts and Culture, the Gauteng Department
of Sport and Recreation South Africa, the Nelson Mandela
Foundation and other stakeholders. The programme
included a dialogue themed “South Africa belongs to all
who live in it” and a media tour which allowed participating
media to explore key locations that have a reference
history to Mandela’s life in Gauteng.

2

The festival was aired live on SABC2 and watched by
approximately 459 812 viewers. The programme was also
promoted on Kaya FM radio and partner digital platforms.
The AVE for the programme was estimated at R10 000 000.

A total of 11 activations were executed for the year under
review. The activations tackled various issues, ranging from
the freedom of expression to cultural sensitivity.

Highlights from the activations executed during
the year under review include the hosting of three
student dialogues in the Free State, Eastern Cape and
Limpopo provinces.
These dialogues allowed student leaders to interrogate the
responsibility that is aligned to the rights that are afforded
by the Constitution.
Brand South Africa also collaborated with KwaZulu-Natal’s
Durban Play House to expose 3600 learners from around
Durban townships to their first ever theatre experience. The
Durban Play House staged a Gibson Kente musical “HOW
LONG?”, for the first time since it was banned in 1976. The
three-day youth activation was leveraged to highlight the
importance of the ‘freedom of expression’, with the aim to
promote affinity to South Africa’s Constitution.
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CONSTITUTIONAL AWARENESS MARKETING
PLATFORMS

2

This campaign aims to showcase the benefits of the South
African Constitution, particularly amongst the youth.
Against a target of 16, it is worth noting that Brand South
Africa achieved all its targets reaching an overall audience of
21million with the constitutional awareness. The campaign
included web films which were promoted on TV, social
media platforms, print and outdoors. The highlight was
during Q3 when sports was utilised as a platform during the
Soweto Derby and stadium banners were used to convey
messages around constitution. The messages targeted
“Right to choice of religion”, Freedom of expression,
“Human dignity”, unity in our diversity. Among other
radio platforms YFM, Metro FM, Motsweding, Phalaphala,
Umhlobo Wenene and Ukhozi FM were used to promote
constitutional messages. Campaign was anchored on a
hashtag #Inspiredbymyconstitution.

1

1. Dr Letoya Makhene, 2. Nina Hastie, 3. Imraan Christian.
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IMPROVED NATION BRAND PERCEPTION DOMESTICALLY
AND INTERNATIONALLY
POSITIVE CONTENT
The development of positive content is a pre-requisite to maintaining a positive image
and reputation for the country, in order to influence perceptions in positioning South
Africa for global competitiveness.
The country hosted several international events, such as ITU and BRICS, as well as the
inaugural, Investment Conference. Brand South Africa used these opportunities to drive
positive messaging to promote inward investment, which is necessary for the growth of
the economy and the creation of jobs for the country.

DIGITAL
Brand South Africa continued to drive awareness of the Nation Brand on digital platforms.
The majority of the content that was published on social media was positive, resulting in a
total of 11.2 million impressions, 143 000 engagements and 4% growth in the community
size across all platforms.
•
In the absence of a digital agency, content development for the website and social
media was managed in-house.
•
The communications strategy focused on the production of more video campaigns
to drive public engagement, as well as in highlighting key strategic events and
partnerships.
•
Brand South Africa was the lead institution in developing the digital communications
strategy for Team South Africa’s key strategic platforms, such as WEF Davos, the
Mining Indaba and the Inaugural South Africa Investment conference.

The messaging for the 10th Annual BRICS Summit focused on reigniting investor and
consumer confidence in elevating the strength of institutions and its commitment to
good governance. This served to profile South Africa’s role and commitment in facilitating
positive effects for Africa’s development agenda.

2

Group Activity Overview

Messaging in celebration of the centenary years for Nelson Mandela and Albertina Sisulu,
was also developed.
Despite the good news stories, there was an increase in negative coverage of the country
domestically and internationally, due to the land reform announcement and content was
developed to mitigate the negative publicity.

Impressions

Engagements

Link Clicks

11.2m

143.4K

44K
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Issues management
Brand South Africa’s mandate includes responding to
issues in the environment that have a negative impact on
the Nation Brand.
The key drivers of issues in the past year included land
reform, unemployment statistic announcements, and
attacks on foreign nationals.
The country also mourned the passing of stalwarts
Mama Winnie Madikizela-Mandela, Zola Skweyiya and
Ambassador George Nene. These stories showcased their
contributions towards the fight for freedom and nationbuilding.

This was well attended by influential people in the
creative, sports and film industries. The domestic
activities also included responding to challenges that
were impacting the reputation of the country brand, such
as 16 days of activism, with a campaign that targeted
men to stand in solidarity with women under the “I Am
here for you” message. The campaign was promoted on
DSTV Mzansi television channels.

Brand South Africa also implements integrated
communication programmes in strategic global markets,
including in its country offices in China, UK and USA.

Brand South Africa’s Amandla campaign won four silver
awards at Pendorings and the Loeries. These platforms
award creative excellence and innovation in advertising.
Brand South Africa partnered with one of the category’s
of the Loeries, named Young Creative Award, which gave
away a prize to the value of R400 000.

The total Brand South Africa generated coverage for the
year amounted to R144 767 538.

POSITIVE POSITIONING OF THE NATION
BRAND THROUGH MEDIA ENGAGEMENT
ACTIVITIES

ENHANCED AWARENESS OF THE NATION
BRAND IDENTITY, IMAGE, COMPETITIVENESS
AND NATION BRAND VALUE PROPOSITION

Brand South Africa hosted, for the first time ever, an
engagement with the South African National Editors
Forum (SANEF), in partnership with the International
Branding and Reputation Community, SA Chapter. The
objective was to strengthen relations with domestic
media in order to find collaborative ways in managing
the image and reputation of the Nation Brand.

Promoting South Africa to South Africans is an important
objective of Brand South Africa’s mandate. The objective
is to get South Africans to rally behind the country in
promoting pride, patriotism and active citizenry. Brand
South Africa achieved all 18 targets of the platforms
that needed to be utilised to promote the country
brand messages, including elements such as creative
advertising. The highlights of these platforms included
Madiba’s centenary schools’ campaign where school
children were encouraged to put forward their stories
of how they are living the values of Tata Madiba. Other
platforms included promoting the country brand to
youth at a Sunday Times Gen Next activation. Brand
South Africa also hosted the 3rd Nation Brand Forum
engagement which focused on the theme “Excellence in
sports, creative arts and film industry”.

Another highlight for Brand South Africa was hosting
two engagements with the Foreign Correspondents
Association. Brand South Africa facilitated an exclusive
engagement for SA-based foreign correspondents with
the President of South Africa. This engagement brought
together the top 34 editors and correspondents in
Johannesburg for an exclusive, on-the-record media
briefing with the President.
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The engagement secured a vast amount of articles
amounting to 432. The media coverage appeared in the
world’s most influential, credible and widely published/
broadcast media titles including CNN, BBC, Washington
Post, Wall Street Journal, New York Times, The Guardian,
The Financial Times and Daily Mail. Numerous global
news agencies were also present, including Associated
Press, Thomson Reuters, Bloomberg and AFP.
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Brand South Africa marketing work wins at the Loeries and Pendorings Awards
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Promotion of the Nation Brand on
international platforms

1

2

3

4

The international mandate of Brand South Africa focuses on
promoting the Nation Brand as an investment destination
of choice. Brand South Africa had a target of utilising eight
platforms and they were able to deliver this seamlessly.

The CEOs Knows and Making it uniquely South
African.
The CEOs know campaign targeted global CEOs who are
continuously investing in South Africa. They simply give
anecdotal reasons for continuing to invest in South Africa.
These included Total CEO, Toyota Global CEO and JSE CEO,
all of whom talked about the strength of doing business in
South Africa.
Making it uniquely South African, the campaign showcased
South African people in the creative arts space, who shared
their experience of how they used their passion of culture,
heritage and history to promote the entrepreneurship
agenda in South Africa. This campaign was an epitome of
what inspiring new ways, really is. Overall, all the campaigns
reached in excess of 8 million social media impressions and
10.5 million from CNBC and BBC on line.
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1. Professor Pikita Ntuli, renowned South African sculptor, poet, writer, and academic, 2. Majolandile ‘Andile’ Dyalvane, a Design Indaba Emerging Creative
alumni and founder of Imiso Ceramics, a Woodstock-based studio that produces exclusive, functional once-off pieces, 3. Mpho Vackier, an engineer and an
interior designer, 4. Mpho Vackier, an engineer and an interior designer.

A COHESIVE APPROACH WHEN PROMOTING
AND MARKETING THE NATION BRAND
AMONG TARGETED STAKEHOLDERS

STRENGTHENED NATION BRAND ADVOCACY
DOMESTICALLY AND AMONGST SOUTH
AFRICANS LIVING ABROAD

Brand South Africa Nation Brand
Alignment Training

Play Your Part ambassador’s activities

Brand South Africa uses the Nation Brand Alignment
Training programme to educate and guide key
stakeholders, in the nuances of marketing a Nation
Brand on international platforms. The annual target for
the Nation Brand Alignment Training programme was
planned to reach 80 institutions for the 2018/19 financial
year and was exceeded by reaching a 195 institutions.
This was achieved mainly through leveraging stakeholder
platforms and honouring requests from Stakeholders for
Brand South Africa to provide them with training.

Toolkit promotional activities
A number of activities were implemented with an
objective of getting South Africans to download the
toolkit to achieve a cohesive image and reputation
country brand. The promotional campaign targeted
academics, communicators and marketers in the public
and private institutions.

Promoting brand advocacy has become a strategic
objective for Brand South Africa and the “Aha moment”
in this programme is in getting South Africans to speak
positively about their country. This programme challenges
South Africans to challenge the paradigm and start doing
something positive in their community thus contributing
towards the achievement of national priorities. It is
pleasing to note that Brand South Africa grew its Play
Your Part ambassador community with a further 202 new
entries and this has expanded the national footprint of
voices that promotes the work of Brand South Africa

2

The ambassadors are very active in the space of
entrepreneurship, skills development, education, health,
sports, creative arts, film, music and business. These are
soldiers on the ground that spread the good work that
is done by Brand South Africa and similarly Brand South
Africa also supports their initiatives.
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GLOBAL SOUTH AFRICANS PROGRAMME

1

2

The Global South Africans (GSA) is a project led by
Brand South Africa to enlist the talent, experience and
credibility of South Africans living abroad.
The GSA programme is presented and implemented in
form of a network, where South Africans act as “brand
ambassadors” for the country and referred to as GSAs.
In the 2018/19 financial year Brand South Africa
implemented 17 GSA activations across a number
of markets, including in the following markets: USA,
Australlia, New Zealand, UK, China (and Hong Kong),
India, Madagascar, India and Paris. The most notable
GSA activations for the 2018/19 financial year included
the following:

1. Mr Mzimkulu Malunga, Board Member, Brand South Africa at GSA Australia, 2. Global South Africans living in Australia
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GSA ACTIVATION IN ACCRA (GHANA)

MEET SOUTH AFRICA, NORTHERN IRELAND (UK)

Brand South Africa, in partnership with the SA High Commission in Accra,
hosted a GSA Engagement on 16 June 2018, under the theme “June 16
Commemoration in Ghana, Accra”. The primary purpose of the activation was
to interact with South Africans working, living, doing business and studying
in Ghana. It also enabled Brand South Africa to introduce the Global South
African programme to South Africans based in Accra. The engagement was
attended by approximately 60 South African members.

On 26 May 2018, Brand South Africa in the UK engaged, for the first time, with
Global South Africans based in Northern Ireland. The engagement, which
was well received, entailed a special performance by artist, Judith Sephuma. A
number of attendees were second generation South Africans, whose parents
had emigrated to the UK prior to 1994. As with many diaspora families,
these youths identify themselves both as Irish and South African, and this
engagement provided an opportunity for Brand South Africa to conscientise
them about their South African roots. The request by attendees to make this
an annual occurrence, is a testament to the success of the event.

1

1. ”Nomination” of one of the GSA representatives to Ghana Chapter of GSA Network at the
GSA Activation.

2

2

2. Welcome remarks by HE L Xingwana at GSA Activation.

Annual Report 2018/19 | Brand South Africa

43

44

GSA ACTIVATION IN WENZHOU (CHINA)

GSA ACTIVATION IN MUMBAI (INDIA)

UK – GSA ACTIVATION (UK)

In February 2019, Brand South Africa hosted an
engagement for 32 Global South Africans (GSA) who are
based in the city of Wenzhou, China. The purpose of the
event was to host an impactful engagement on Nation
Branding and messaging to South Africans studying in
China. Students from the Wenzhou University as well
as Wenzhou Vocational College participated in the
engagement, with several of them also performing
musical pieces as part of the programme.

As part of its activities to promote country reputation in
this strategic market, Brand South Africa hosted a GSA
activation in Mumbai. The engagement was attended by
South Africans working and residing in India including
officials from the Consulate in Mumbai and South African
Tourism. On opening the proceedings, the ConsulGeneral Ms ML Ramokgopa indicated that it was crucial
for South Africans to engage on the developments back
home and to act as Brand Ambassadors for the country.
The event was attended by South Africans residing,
studying and working in India.

Brand South Africa partnered with the Nelson Mandela
Children’s Fund (NMCF) in a drive to mobilize Global
South Africans to support award-winning South African
Musician and Philanthropist, Loyiso Bala. The NMCF UK
is a registered charity in the UK, whose main purpose
is to do fund raising for, and publicise, the work of the
NMCF in South Africa. In addition to their work with
schools throughout the UK as part of their advocacy and
citizenship programme, the NMCF UK also works with a
wide range of donors, from individuals, schools, and faith
groups, to companies and trusts across the UK.
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GSA FREEDOM DAY CELEBRATION IN
NEW YORK (USA)

1

3

The Freedom Day Celebrations in New York were
organised by the South African Community in New York
and surrounding areas. The event was held at the Harlem
Hospital Mural Pavilion Centre for Arts and Culture for
the South African community in New York and the TriState area. It also served as a tribute to music icon and
lifelong political activist, Hugh Masekela, in a segment
dubbed “Hugh’s Walk of Life, Thuma Mina”.
The event was well-received by the 300 attendees. The
programme was addressed by Ms Phumzile MlamboNgcuka, Executive Director for UN Women, Sikhulu
Change, Ms Andy Makwabe from the SA Permanent
Mission to the United Nations, several other speakers
representing the youth in the community, as well as the
Brand South Africa Country Manager.

2
2

The event also served to launch the Hugh Masekela
Heritage Foundation Chapter in the USA. The Foundation
exists to preserve and promote African heritage and to
contribute to the restoration of African identity, through
the creation of cultural information facilities, the support
and incubation of heritage arts, and the dissemination of
this information and cultural inheritance throughout the
African Diaspora and the world.

1. (Mr. Edward Ndopu, sharing his story with GSAs and Friends of South Africa, Heritage Day Celebration, New York., 2. Twitter post by
Ms. Felicia Mabuza-Suttle who also attended the event, 3. Judith Sephuma and Mr Louis Gosett Jnr.

Annual Report 2018/19 | Brand South Africa

45

PROGRAMME 3: STAKEHOLDER
RELATIONSHIPS

ACTIVITIES IMPLEMENTED IN PARTNERSHIP
WITH PRIVATE SECTOR STAKEHOLDERS

ENHANCED RELATIONS WITH STAKEHOLDERS
TOWARDS THE PROMOTION OF THE NATION
BRAND REPUTATION DOMESTICALLY AND
INTERNATIONALLY

A total of 15 coordinated activities were implemented
in partnership with private sector stakeholders against a
set target of 12 activities. The private sector programme
focused increasing the number of activities implemented
with existing partners by leveraging additional partner
platforms, at no additional cost to the organisation. For
this reason, four different activities were implemented
in collaboration with Business Engage and another three
activities with Nation Builder.

Brand South Africa works with and through stakeholders
to deliver on its mandate. The organisation targets
three key stakeholder groupings when identifying
relevant partners to collaborate with. These are: private
sector stakeholders; state institutions; and civil society
stakeholders. Brand South Africa’s stakeholders are those
organisations who are affected by the organisations work
and in turn have the power and influence to champion
the cause of the Nation Brand.
A key element of enhancing the Brand South Africa’s
relations with key stakeholders is to share feedback with
them on the organisation Nation Brand Performance
research. The objective of these sessions serve to create
an enhanced understanding of the performance of the
Nation Brand among stakeholders and this was done
throughout the year at various platforms.
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Other significant collaborations for the financial year
include:
•
The South Africa Investment seminar was hosted
in partnership with Absa, within the margins of the
World Economic Forum Annual Meeting in Davos
2019. The Investment seminar showcased successes
of the first Investment Conference held in October
2018, while it also was utilised as an opportunity
to communicate on the reforms government has
initiated to improve ease of doing business, and to
enhance the Nation Brand’s profile as an investment
partner of choice. President Ramaphosa delivered
the key note address at the session which was
attended by over 80 guests and widely reported on
various media platforms, including SABC News
and eNCA.

•

Brand South Africa managed to establish a
relationship with the National Business Initiative
(NBI) and engage NBI member companies on
issues that are affecting the performance of the
Nation Brand as well as the outcomes of the 2018
Investment conference. The National Business
Initiative (NBI) is a voluntary coalition of South
African and multinational companies, working
towards sustainable growth and development in
South Africa and the shaping of a sustainable future
through responsible business action,
thereby demonstrating business action for
sustainable growth.
The first collaborative session was also utilised to
consult business stakeholders on challenges and
opportunities for collaboration on the marketing and reputation management - of the Nation Brand.
It was agreed that this collaboration would continue
to the next financial year with the aim of reaching
the NBI’s members in the Western Cape and
KwaZulu-Natal provinces.

ACTIVITIES IMPLEMENTED IN PARTNERSHIP
WITH STATE INSTITUTIONS
As part of the Stakeholder Relations programme, Brand
South Africa collaborates with public sector/government
stakeholder’s based on their area of focus or influence
on the reputation and competitiveness of the Nation
Brand. The collaborations also allow the organisation to
promote the Nation Brand identity amongst targeted
audiences and build awareness of the country image and
Nation Brand value proposition.
To that end, Brand South Africa continued to collaborate
with state institutions, such as the Department of Trade
and Industry (dti), the Department of Higher Education
& Training and Department of International Relations
and Cooperation, during the year under review. National
departments, such as the above, are key carriers of
the Nation Brand, but are not the only strategic state
institutions with which Brand South Africa collaborates
with. The annual plans target for coordinated activities
implemented in partnership with state institution
stakeholders, were 14 and the organisation was able to
implement 16 initiatives.
•

One of the highlights of this programme, is the
conclusion of a collaborative agreement with
Proudly South African. Brand South Africa was then
able to collaborate with Proudly South African
and South African Tourism in the execution of a
KwaZulu-Natal province Heritage Tourism and
Investment Tour. The objective of the tour was to
showcase some of the most significant heritage,
tourism and investment sites that the province
offers. The tour illustrated the role of buying local
as an active citizen vehicle as well as to profile
features that promote the competitiveness of the
Nation Brand in tourism, hospitality, heritage and
investment attractiveness.

•

•

This partnership was extended to the Proudly South
African’s Buy Local Summit which was leveraged
to showcase the Play Your Part Programme and
to engage participants on other work of the
organisation. The Summit ran over two days and
was attended by over 3000 participants, including
speakers, exhibitors and day visitors.
Brand South Africa collaborated with Constitution
Hill and its other key stakeholders within the human
rights and social justice fraternity, to present the 2nd
Edition of The Human Rights Festival programme.
The Festival commemorates Human Rights Day
and month, and pays homage to all those who lost
their lives in the fight for democracy, particularly
during the Sharpeville Massacre of 21 March 1960.
More importantly, it highlights the work of social
justice organisations and public institutions who
are entrusted with the responsibility of uphold the
law and the principles enshrined within the South
African Constitution - equality; justice; freedom and
dignity, providing an opportunity to celebrate the
gains we have made as a country, at 25 years
of democracy.

CIVIL SOCIETY COLLABORATIONS
Civil Society organisations are a critical stakeholder
grouping for Brand South Africa. In the year under
review, Brand South Africa continued its partnership with
organisations such as the Nelson Mandela Foundation
and Partners for Possibility, but was also able to establish
new relationships with organisations such as the South
African Council of Churches and the Thabo Mbeki
Foundation. Civil Society partners provide access to
various community projects and audiences, and assists
the organisation in promoting active citizenship among
those targeted audiences.

2

1

The Festival programme also included social forums,
film screenings; music performances; poetry, arts
and book festivals where Brand South Africa was
visibly represented either by branding or Audio
Visual material. The four day programme was
attended by an estimated 10 000 people.
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Some of the key collaborations for the year are outlined
below.
•

•

During the first quarter of the year, Brand South
Africa collaborated with the Sindisa Dunga
Foundation in the hosting of an Education, Training
and Career Guidance Expo in the Eastern Cape
Province. More than 2000 grade 12 learners
attended the expo which is designed to expose
learners to the various career paths that are available
and give them hands on assistance in submitting
their applications to various tertiary institutions.
This has expo has grown to be a critical platform for
learners from impoverished communities who often
don’t have access to the internet.

In line with the organisation’s mandate to encourage
active citizenship, this year’s Convention launched
the Civil Society Manifesto, a document created in
consultation with other civil society organisations,
to mobilise South Africans to embrace diversity
and unite in building national values. The activity
was promoted through live reads in the three radio
stations, Umhlobo Wenene, Ukhozi, and Lesedi FM
reaching an audience of approximately 20 million
South Africans.

2

3

The platform was leveraged to also introduce learners
to the Play Your Part programme and engage them on
the importance of being activate citizens and shaping
their own future. Other organisations that partnered
with the Foundation to support the expo include the
Eastern Cape Education Department, South African
Institute of Chartered Accountants, Council for Scientific
and Industrial Research, Auditor General, Sanlam,
PriceWaterhouse Coopers, Nedbank and various Tertiary
Education Institutions.

4

1. Rev Dr Thabo Makgoba, Bishop Mpumlwana and Bishop Dino, 2. Former President Kgalema Montlanthe, 3. Soweto Gospel Choir at the Civil Society Manifesto Launch, 4. Bishop Malusi Mpumlwana, SACC,Ms Gloria Serobe, Wipcapital,
Dr Pali Lehohla, Ms Koketso Moeti, Amandla.mobi
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IN-MARKET ACTIVITIES
In the 2018/19 financial year, Brand South Africa set
a target of 48 in-market activities, and the target was
exceeded with 49 activities being implemented. Some of
the prominent or most notable activities implemented
across targeted markets and country offices, included the:
•

Reception and panel discussion with the cast of
the Lion King to celebrate Black History Month,
roundtable discussion in collaboration with Invest
Africa Business Council for Africa, Freedom Day
and launch of the UNSC Candidature Campaign in
the US, a State Visit to China and Forum for China –
Africa Cooperation (FOCAC), UK Offline Engagement
with Thought Leaders, SA-Hong Business Breakfast,
Business Engagement with Merck, Invest SA and
Darmstadt in Germany, and Business Engagement
with the SA High Commissioner in New Delhi and
SA Consulate in Mumbai (India).

1

RECEPTION AND PANEL DISCUSSION WITH
THE CAST OF THE LION KING TO CELEBRATE
BLACK HISTORY MONTH (US)

OFFLINE ENGAGEMENT WITH THOUGHT
LEADERS, INFLUENCERS, INNOVATORS,
COLLABORATORS AND ENTREPRENEURS (UK)

On 19 February 2018, Brand South Africa collaborated
with the International House (I-House) in New York to
host a reception and panel discussion to celebrate Black
History Month. The I-House was founded in 1924 by
the Rockefeller and Dodge families to provide a venue
for graduate students from around the world to live and
learn together. It currently houses 700 residents from
more than 100 countries.

During the 2018/19 financial year, Brand South Africa
continued its partnership with Offline – a private, by
invitation-only network, designed to encourage fresh
ways of looking at the world and the art of sharing – to
host a series of gatherings of high net-worth individuals
to inform them about South Africa, its heritage,
opportunities, innovations and quality of life.

The panel discussion included the cast of the Lion King,
comprising mostly South Africans, who talked about
their experiences on Broadway and the parallels that
exist between the arts industry in South Africa and the
US. Beyond speaking about their careers, the actors also
performed two of their signature songs —The Circle of
Life and They Live in You. The event was well-attended,
attracting about 320 participants who are residents of the
International House. The event succeeded in positioning
South Africa’s arts and culture among the residents of
I-House from across the globe.
2

2

The last in the series of events co-hosted with Offline,
was held in the last quarter of the financial year. As with
all prior engagements, an average number of 30 carefully
selected attendees were invited based on the diversity of
their craft.

3

1. Panellist at the Mumbai Interactive Business Engagement, 2. Reception and panel discussion with the cast of the Lion King to celebrate black history month (US) ,3. Team South Africa in attendance (BPS companies who were sharing
South Africa’s Value Proposition with the UK investors. Some of these were originally from the UK and they moved to South Africa to set up BPS operations)
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ROUNDTABLE DISCUSSION IN
COLLABORATION WITH INVEST AFRICA
BUSINESS COUNCIL FOR AFRICA

FREEDOM DAY CELEBRATIONS AND LAUNCH
OF THE UNITED NATIONS SECURITY COUNCIL
CANDIDATURE CAMPAIGN

At the beginning of the second quarter, Brand South
Africa partnered with Invest Africa Business Council for
Africa for a roundtable discussion at PwC in London to
host an engagement with potential investors under the
theme: “Building South Africa’s Future Economy”. The
Minister of Transport, H.E Dr Bonginkosi Emmanuel
“Blade” Nzimande was in London on an official visit, and
Brand South Africa UK Country Manager secured his
participation at the event to engage with the audience
on matters that relate to investment in South Africa and
opportunities within the transport sector. Brand South
Africa provided opening remarks, which focused on three
areas: South Africa’s approach to investment promotion,
South Africa’s approach for SADC, and African
regional integration.

Brand South Africa also partnered with the Permanent
Representative to the United Nations, Consul General
in New York and South African Tourism as well as
representatives of South Africa business entities in the
US, Standard Bank and South African Airways to co-host
the Freedom Day celebrations, launch South Africa’s
candidature for the United Nations Security Council
Campaign, and celebrate Mandela’s 100th Year Centenary.
The theme for this year’s celebration was: “The Year
of Nelson Rolihlahla Mandela: towards full realisation
of our freedom through radical socio-economic
transformation”. The event was also used to launch the
campaign for South Africa’s candidature for a nonpermanent seat at the UN Security Council in 2019/20.
Attracting about 400 guests out of 700 invitations sent,
the event was addressed by the Minister of International
Relations and Cooperation Special Envoy Mr. Aziz Pahad;
Secretary General of the United Nations Chef de Cabinet;
and Miss Universe, who all made a compelling case of
South Africa’s role on the global stage.

1

1. Discussions during the Investment Roundtable, IABCA Session, 2. President Ramaphosa CGTN exclusive interview
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STATE VISIT TO CHINA AND FORUM FOR
CHINA – AFRICA COOPERATION (FOCAC)
South Africa’s President, H.E. Cyril Ramaphosa paid a
State Visit to the People’s Republic of China on
2 September 2018. This was followed by South Africa
co-chairing the 2018 FOCAC Summit which took place
in Beijing from 3–4 September. The visit followed on the
earlier visit to South Africa by Chinese President H.E. Xi
Jinping prior to the BRICS Summit in July 2018.
Brand South Africa leveraged the platform and actively
supported engagements on the side-lines of the
abovementioned summits. These were mainly in the
form of media engagement involving “Team South Africa”
delegates, as well as supporting a business breakfast
which was headlined by President Cyril Ramaphosa.
Brand South Africa proactively leveraged its local media
stakeholder relationships, as well as the presence of key
spokespeople who were of interest to local media in
order to deliver South Africa’s story and allow it to have a
‘share of voice’ during the state visit and FOCAC Summit.

2

SOUTH AFRICA – HONG KONG BUSINESS
BREAKFAST (CHINA)
Coinciding with the anniversary of President Ramaphosa’s
“New Dawn,” and renewal of business and investor
confidence in South Africa, Brand South Africa identified
an opportunity to follow up on the resounding success of
the SA Investment Conference that was held in October
2018. To this end, Brand South Africa hosted a Nation
Brand reputation enhancing engagement in Hong Kong,
in the form of a business breakfast during quarter 4 of the
reporting year.
In working with the South African Consulate in Hong
Kong, the engagement enabled Brand South Africa to
access and address a sizable number of some of Hong
Kong’s most prominent business people and investors.
This was achieved through the collaboration with the
highly influential Chinese General Chamber of Commerce
(CGCC), which has in excess of 6000 members.

1

The engagement was met with a high level of interest,
with over 80 delegates filling the venue to capacity. The
programme included presentations and testimonials by
the CEO of Standard Advisory Asia, CEO and Founder of
Hong Kong based Acorus Capital, the Chairman of the
CGCC, as well as the South African Consul-General in
Hong Kong.

PROMOTING COUNTRY REPUTATION IN INDIA
(GLOBAL MARKETS)
Brand South Africa, the South African High Commission
(New Delhi) and the South African Consulate-General
(Mumbai) in India hosted interactive business
engagements during the month of March 2019. As
part of the programme for the engagements, Indian
companies with operations in South Africa and South
African companies with a footprint in India provided their
perspectives of South Africa as a market for foreign
direct investment.

South Africa is an attractive investment destination for
Indian companies such as Tata Motors Limited, an Indian
multinational automotive manufacturing having operated
in South Africa for 15 years. Speaking at the Mumbai
business engagement, Tata Consultancy Services Country
Head based in South Africa, Mr. Adil Tantra, shared his
sentiments on the ease of doing business in South Africa
as an Indian based company.
The insights shared by Indian businesses such as Tata,
Motherson and EXL services based in South Africa
echoed positive sentiments about the economy of the
country, the culture and its people, the new emerging
sectors, manufacturing, and the ICT sectors such as
education (higher education), infrastructure, banking and
financial systems, as well as labour (people and culture)
were highlighted as some of South Africa’s competitive
strengths by speakers and attendees in both cities.

2

2

1. Speakers and Members of the CGCC – Hong Kong Business Breakfast, 2. Investment Seminar South Africa, hosted at the Association of German Chambers of Industry and Commerce (DIHK) Berlin.
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PROMOTING COUNTRY REPUTATION IN
GERMANY AND FRANCE (GLOBAL MARKETS)

Major local and international corporates pledged
R290 billion towards investment in South Africa
at the conclusion of the conference. Brand South
Africa played a strategic role in the execution of
the communications programme (including digital
communications) for the conference.

2

As part of its mandate to promote country reputation
globally, Brand South Africa visited Germany and France
to engage with stakeholders from government and
business to market the country as a competitive and
attractive investment destination.
Brand South Africa partnered with the dti through
Invest SA on this visit in order to promote South Africa
as an investment destination of choice with German
corporates and institutions. Upon request from Invest SA,
whose visit to Germany formed part of their roadshow
to three European countries (Switzerland, Germany and
France), Brand South Africa further collaborated with
them on the third leg of their roadshow to Paris, France.

1

•

ACTIVITIES IMPLEMENTED AT STRATEGIC
PLATFORMS
The organisation leverages strategic platforms to
positively position the South African Nation Brand.
Participated in ten strategic platforms during the year
and these include South Africa’s hosting of the annual ITU
Telecom World meeting, as well as Team South Africa’s
participation at the World Economic Forum annual
meeting in Davos and the Invest in Africa Mining Indaba.
A few other key activities are elaborated on below.
•

1. Merck engagement, Darmstadt, 2. Investment Seminar South Africa, hosted
at MEDEF, Paris
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Brand South Africa collaborated with the Presidency,
the IDC and InvestSA in executing the inaugural
South African Investment Conference. At the
2018 State of the Nation Address President Cyril
Ramaphosa announced an investment drive to
raise R1.2 trillion in new investments over the
next five years for the country. During the third
quarter the President then hosted South Africa’s
first Investment Conference. The Conference was
attended by international as well as local investors
and stakeholders.

South Africa’s hosting of the 10th BRICS Summit
offered Brand South Africa an opportunity to
support a key national initiative and to contribute
at both strategic planning levels and the on-theground implementation of what is considered
a very successful 10th BRICS Summit. Working
with stakeholders such as DIRCO, Presidency, the
dti, the BRICS Business Council and other South
African private sector stakeholders, Brand South
Africa contributed elements including Nation Brand
positioning, messaging, content, marketing strategy,
brand alignment advice and research to the
overall programme.
Brand South Africa also supported the dti in its
hosting of a successful BRICS Business Forum at the
Sandton Convention Centre. The participation in the
Business Forum enabled South Africa and African
companies to leverage the current political goodwill
towards achieving desired and optimal business
exchange between members of the BRICS countries
and the rest of the African continent. The BRICS
Business Forum was widely covered by local and
international media and trended during the course
of the day on social media.

•

Brand South Africa was requested to provide
support to Team South Africa’s participation at the
73rd UN General Assembly (UNGA) and related
side-events, incl. the Nelson Mandela Peace
Summit. In addition, the organisation supported
DIRCO with brand visibility and marketing in hosting
the Reception at the Nelson Mandela Peace Summit.
Brand South Africa also provided communications
support to the President and his official delegation
by arranging interviews with leading media houses
in the market (print and television). This included
sit down interviews with the Wall Street Journal and
the Foreign Policy Magazine. Interviews were also
arranged with Reuters and Bloomberg interviews
with Minister Nene and with Minister Davies, by
Barron’s, an American weekly newspaper published
by Dow Jones & Company.
An additional UNGA side activity included Brand
South Africa’s participation at the Africa Initiative
Roundtable: Africa in the Media, which was a highlevel roundtable to address Africa’s portrayal in the
U.S. Brand South Africa also supported the dti in
hosting of a CEO Roundtable and Investment Panel
Investment Opportunities in South Africa, within
the margins of UNGA. The CEO Roundtable was
addressed by President Ramaphosa.

•

Brand South Africa leveraged on the presence
of the President and his delegation to build and
manage the reputation of the Nation Brand in
the USA, following a spate of criticism against the
country’s land reform policy and led on hosting two
additional engagements on the side lines of UNGA.

2

1

2
3

4

1. President Ramaphosa addressing the Plenary, Nelson Mandela Peace Summit, 2. Digital Artwork developed in-house by Brand South Africa’s digital team, 3. President Ramaphosa unveiling the Nelson Mandela Statue,
4. Influencer Roundtable Event in collaboration with Foreign Policy Magazine.
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Section 3

Organisational
Dynamics
A New Dawn means bringing our Vision to
life, a Nation Brand that inspires its people
and is admired globally. Inspiration needs to
start within.

54
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CORPORATE SERVICES

STAFF MOVEMENT

HUMAN CAPITAL

Below is a table indicating full staff movement for the year 2018/19

Organisational Stability

2018/19

The vacancy rate and the turnover rates per each category:
a. The overall staff vacancy rate is 14%. The turnover
rate is above the 10% threshold, the increase in the
vacancy rate is due to a combination of factors such as
dismissals and the moratorium from the Minster
of Communications on new appointments for the
eight vacant positions, due to a proposed
reconfiguration process.
b. The overall staff turnover rate is 17.82%. The turnover
rate is inclusive of two dismissals.
c. The Exco staff turnover rate is 44% (due to one Exco
resignation and one dismissal).
d. There were no resignations from the Critical Workforce
positions (CWP). Brand South Africa has eight positions
which are deemed as CWP.

Month

TERMINATIONS
Resignations

Dismissal

Retirement

Voluntary
Severance

Death in
service

End of
Contract

Apr

0

0

0

0

0

0

May

1

0

0

0

0

0

Jun

0

0

0

0

0

0

Jul

0

0

0

0

0

0

Aug

0

0

0

0

0

0

Sep

3

0

0

0

0

0

Oct

0

0

0

0

0

0

Nov

1

0

0

0

0

0

Dec

0

0

0

0

0

0

Jan

1

0

0

0

0

0

Feb

0

1

0

0

0

0

Mar

1

1

0

0

0

0

TOTALS

7

2

0

0

0

0

Table 1 – Terminations
The table above depicts the staff terminations for Brand South Africa in the year under review. As shown in the table, there
were seven resignations and two dismissals in the 2018/19 financial period.
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LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT
BURSARIES
Qualification

Department

Position

Master in Management of Strategic Marketing

Marketing and Communications

Activations Manager

BBA Marketing

Marketing and Communications

Admin and Traffic Coordinator

Master of Management in Digital Business

Marketing and Communications

Digital and New Media Manager

Master of Management in Digital Business

Corporate Services

Information Technology Manager

B Hons Strategic Brand Communications

Marketing and Communications

Assistant Brand Manager

Table 2 – Bursaries

SHORT TERM COURSES
Programme Name

3
Employee Position
IT Manager
Strategic Relationship Manager: Business
Executive Assistant: Strategic Planning and Performance Monitoring
Legal Manager

Three Bid Committee

Human Capital Manager
Activations Manager
Assistant Brand Manager
Finance Manager
Supply Chain Manager
Chief Financial Officer
IT Manager
Human Capital Manager

Employment Equity

Activations Manager
Manager, Office of the CEO
Assistant Board Secretariat
Strategic Relationship Manager: Business
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Programme Name

Employee Position
Human Capital Manager
Strategic Relationship Manager: Business
General Manager: Communications
General Manager: Stakeholder Relations
Digital and New Media Manager

Emotional Intelligence

Communications Officer: International
Assistant Brand Manager
General Manager: Marketing
Chief Financial Officer
General Manager: Global Markets
Supply Chain Manager
Programme Liaison: Global Markets
Supply Chain Administrator
Activations Officer

Business/Professional Writing Skills

Accountant
Activations Manager
Strategic Relationship Manager: Civil Society
Finance Manager
Supply Chain Manager
Human Capital Manager

Sage People 300

Human Capital Administrator
Accountant

Minute Taking
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Assistant Board Secretariat

Programme Name

Employee Position
Activations Manager
Executive PA to CMO
Strategic Relationship Manager: Civil Society

Public Speaking and Presentation Skills

Strategic Relationship Manager: Business
Assistant Brand Manager
Digital and New Media Manager
Admin and Traffic Coordinator
Anele Ngwenya replace with the name of the position
TI Manager
Human Capital Manager
Digital and New Media Manager
Strategic Relationship Manager: Business

Finance for Non -Financial Managers

3

Marketing Manager
General Manager: Stakeholder Relations
Activations Manager
Supply Chain Manager
Country Manager: UK
Research Manager
Country Manager: USA

The Digital Marketing Conference

Digital and New Media Manager

POPI

All staff
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EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATISTICS AND GENDER EQUITY
The gender diversity of the Brand South Africa’s workforce as at 31 March 2019

Demographic
DemographicComposition
CompositionofofBrand
BrandSouth
SouthAfrica
AfricaWorkforce
Workforceatat 31 March 2019
31 March 2019

The infographics alongside present the gender profile of Brand South Africa’s
workforce. Overall, women represent 69.23% of the employees’ profile. At the
management level, female employees occupy 52.38% of the management
positions. The one female is of Indian ethnicity which is within the Employment
Equity requirements/targets for Indian female representation.

STAFF WITH A DISABILITY

69.23% Female
52.38% Overall Management Level
• 50% of EXCO (2)
• 71.43% of General Management (5)
• 40% of Management (4)
85.71% of Professionals (6)
76.19% of General Staff (16)

30.77% Male
47.62% Overall Management Level
• 50% of EXCO (2)
• 28.57% of General Management (2)
• 60% of Management (6)
14.29% of Professionals (1)
23.81% of General Staff (5)
89.80% Workforce is Black (44)
4.08% Workkforce is White (2)
4.08% Workforce is Colored (2)
2.04% Workforce is Indian (1)
2.04% Workforce living with Disability (1)

Graph 1 – Brand South Africa’s employment equity stats and gender diversity
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Brand South Africa continues to strive for a fair representation of people with
disabilities. The entity currently has one employee with a disability, which
translates to 2% of the people living with a disability. In an effort to increase the
number of people living with disabilities in the workforce, a database of service
providers that deal with such recruitments is in place.

EMPLOYEE WELLNESS PROGRAMME
Brand South Africa strives to promote the psychosocial
wellbeing of its staff members. The wellness assistant
programme, which is managed by an outsourced
service provider, supports staff members and their
immediate family members living with the employee.
Corporate Services hosted an annual wellness day,
where employees had an opportunity to undertake
normal health screening such as cholesterol, sugar,
blood pressure and voluntary testing and counselling for
HIV and AIDS, as well as to obtain a flu vaccine. As part
of wellbeing, employees were invited to participate in
sporting activities and fun dance sessions. Other services
that were offered to create awareness on the day,
included discussions on topics listed herewith;
•
•

3

Leadership – this discussion explored the concept of
leadership and self-leadership.
Absenteeism – the purpose of this discussion was
to highlight and create awareness on the impact of
absenteeism on productivity within the workplace.
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INTERNSHIP PROGRAMME
Brand South Africa aims to contribute to the objectives of the National Development
Plan (NDP) by undertaking coordinated initiatives to build South Africa’s reputation and
contribute to the country’s global competitiveness. It also aims to inspire and instil pride
and patriotism among South Africans and to drive active citizenry.
In light of this, Brand South Africa has applied for seven interns through the relevant SETA
and was approved to host them within the following departments: Finance, Corporate
Services, and Marketing and Communications.

LEAVE PAY OUT
2017/18
Reason
Leave pay out on
termination of service

Total
Amount
R167,590.97

Number of
employees
7

Average
Payment
R23,941.57

2018/19
Reason
Leave pay out on
termination of service

62

Total
Amount
R299,814.86
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Number of
employees
9

Average
Payment
R33 312.76

Due to the high annual leave provisions, Brand South Africa continues to encourage
staff to take annual leave within the given financial period as required by the BCEA and
Brand South Africa’s leave policy. The table alongside reflects an increase in leave pay-out
for 2018/19 in comparison to 2017/18. This is as a result of the increased number of
terminations and the level of seniority of the outgoing persons.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND CONTROLS
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT)
The Audit and Risk Committee of the Board is responsible for information technology
governance in accordance with King IV and ensures the effectiveness and efficiency of
Brand South Africa’s information systems. The committee comprises three independent
external members, four members of the board and the executive management team
who assist the board in governing technology and information in a way that supports the
organisation in setting and achieving its strategic objectives.
Information Technology Services is responsible for providing IT solutions that are
competitive, cost effective, and efficient in a secure environment. Through its partners and
stakeholders, IT designs, develops, and maintains solutions to assist in communications,
supply chain management and financial operations.

IT GOVERNANCE

ENTERPRISE RESOURCE PLANNING (ERP)

Information technology governance has become increasingly critical, as the
dependency on information and systems increase. Cyber security is a growing threat
in all businesses and best practice information security and a sound governance
framework are pivotal in addressing this risk. During the year, the organisation adopted
the Information Technology Services Governance Framework, aimed at achieving the
following:
•
IT Security analysis and vulnerability assessments
•
Development of information security policies and standards
•
Provision of a risk management process
•
Ongoing review and improvement of controls
•
Compliance with regulations
•
Assurance on business continuity and systems availability

The world is rapidly advancing in the areas of communication, digital marketing and
financial transactions. This means that Brand South Africa’s financial systems must
adapt and implement appropriate delivery platforms for suppliers and the purpose of
internal use. Consequently, information technology investment will continue to grow.
The Board, therefore, has a responsibility to ensure that governance around these
ongoing and fast changing developments is at the highest level of oversight. The Board
appreciates the importance of information technology, as it is integral to the Strategy
and the Annual Performance Plan of the organisation.
The Dynamix AX, an enterprise resource planning system was implemented this
reporting year. The delivery of the Dynamix AX is the phase 2 implementation of the
full project which started in the 2017/2018 financial period. The ERP will deliver an
integrated solution, which will support the business and its operational strategies.

The Audit and Risk Committee has oversight of IT Governance on behalf of the Board.

3

ANNUAL FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
The entity ended the financial year with the deficit of R15.6 million. The deficit is
mainly backed up by prior year reserves from the rolled over funds. The major cost
drivers were activation costs which increased by 60% from R43 million to R69 million
attributable to additional activations undertaken in the current financial year from
partnership with dti, Multichoice and Old Mutual as well as increased activities in
flagship projects.
All the financial policies have been reviewed as per the changes to the legislation.
Furthermore, the entity changed over their accounting system during the year with an
aim to improve the internal controls and procurement processes to address the prior
year audit findings and to ensure compliance with National Treasury prescripts.
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Section 4

Corporate
Governance
Our Brand positioning is to inspire and unify
Civil Society, Business, Government and
Media to build the reputation of South Africa;
at the core of reputation is Governance.

64
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Legal and Regulatory Compliance
The organisation continues to monitor the slow registration processes in

1

2

various jurisdictions where its trademarks are purported to be registered.
BRAND SOUTH AFRICA TRADEMARK

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The organisation continues to monitor the slow
registration processes in various jurisdictions where its
trademarks are purported to be registered.

Brand South Africa is a Schedule 3A public entity
registered as a trust in terms of the Trust Property Control
Act, Act No. 57 of 1988. The Board of Trustees believes
good corporate governance is key to the entity’s success.
The Board has already transitioned from King III to King
IV which requires organisations to ‘apply and explain’
the relevant principles and recommended practices
enunciated in the King Report on Corporate Governance
in South Africa, 2016 (King IV) in order to realise the
following outcomes: ethical culture, good performance,
effective control, and legitimacy.

Brand South Africa’s intention to lodge a court
application against Brand Summit South Africa on the
grounds that it was confusingly similar to Brand South
Africa was delayed by administrative hurdles at the
registration authorities.

EMPLOYEE MATTERS
The two employees who were dismissed for misconduct
during the 4th quarter have referred disputes to the
CCMA and the Labour Court, respectively. The appeal
which was lodged by former Brand South Africa China
Country Manager was first dismissed by the CCMA on
31 January 2019 and was subsequently upheld a
few weeks later, during February 2019. Although the
organisation intended taking the matter to the Labour
Court for review, a legal opinion which was subsequently
received, advised that the matter be dealt with at the
CCMA’s rescheduled arbitration process.
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EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY
In accordance with the Public Finance Management
Act, Act No.1 of 1999 (PFMA). The Minister of
Communications, Ms Stella Ndabeni-Abrahams was the
Executive Authority of Brand South Africa during the year
under review.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
The Board was appointed by The Presidency, in
consultation with the Executive Authority, on 12 April
2016. The Master of the High Court issued Board
Members with their Letters of Authority on 1 June 2016.

3

4

5

6

7

8

1.

Ms Khanyisile Kweyama
Chairperson, trustee

2.

Mr Mzimkulu Malunga
Trustee

3.

Mr Geoffrey Rothschild
Trustee

4.

Mr Mpho Makwana
Trustee

5.

Mr Stavros Nicolaou
Trustee

6.

Ms Janine Hills
Trustee

7.

Ms Given Sibiya
Trustee

8.

Ms Babalwa Ngonyama
Deputy Chairperson, Trustee

9.

Mr Rashid Lombard
Trustee

10.

Mr Kuseni Dlamini
Trustee

11.

Ms Muditambi Ravele
Trustee

12.

Ms Lehlohonolo Bonoko
Trustee

13.

Ms Thembi Kunene-Msimang
Trustee

14.

Mr Arthur Mafokate
Trustee* Resigned on
25 April 2018.

14

9

10

11

12

13
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EXCO
In line with good corporate governance practice, all trustees are non-executive members, except the CEO who is
an ex officio executive trustee. The Audit and Risk Committee (ARCO), in addition to trustees, also consists of two
independent members who are not trustees.
The Board adds significant value to Brand South Africa by:

BOARD CHARTER

•
•

The Board has a charter which is reviewed annually and
provides a concise overview of:
•
The segregation of the roles, functions,
responsibilities and powers of the Board, the
Executive Authority, individual trustees, Board
committees, and Management;
•
Matters reserved for final decision-making or
approval by the Board; and
•
The practices and procedures of the Board on matters
relating to corporate governance, declarations of
conflicts of interests, Board meeting documentation
and procedures, as well as the induction, training, and
evaluation of trustees.

•

•

•

Retaining full and effective control of the organisation
Determining Brand South Africa’s strategy and
strategic objectives;
Determining and setting the tone at the top as
regards the organisation’s values and principles of
ethical practice;
Bringing independent, informed and effective
judgement to bear on material decisions of Brand
South Africa, including policies and budget approval;
and
Satisfying itself that Brand South Africa is governed
effectively in accordance with best corporate
governance practice, including risk management,
internal control systems, and general oversight.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND APPOINTMENT OF
TRUSTEES
The Trust Deed provides that the Board should comprise
no less than 11 trustees, with a maximum of 15. All
trustees are appointed by the President of South Africa for
a three-year term. The Board is unitary and consists of
15 trustees.
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The Office of the Chairperson and the CEO are separate,
and there is a clear division of responsibilities between
these roles. During the year under review, Ms Khanyisile
Kweyama served as the Chairperson and was primarily
responsible for the strategic leadership of the Board.
Ms Babalwa Ngonyama served as the Deputy Chairperson.
The CEO is supported by an Executive Committee (EXCO)
consisting of the executive management team. EXCO is
responsible for implementing the decisions of the Board
in pursuit of the organisation’s mandate and objectives.

BOARD MEETINGS
The Board formally met four times during 2018/19
in accordance with its annual calendar. These Board
meetings were held at Brand South Africa’s head office in
Houghton. In addition, nine special Board meetings and
teleconferences were convened by the Board during the
period under review to discuss urgent matters.

Ms. Sithembile Ntombela
Acting Chief Marketing Officer

Dr Krishnee Kissoonduth
Director: Corporate Services

4
Ms. Thulisile Manzini
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kgomotso Seripe
Acting Chief Financial Officer

Adv Sifiso S. Nyoni
Director: Governance, Legal
and Board Secretariat
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BOARD MEETINGS
Brand South Africa Board Meetings 2018/19
MEETING DATES
MEMBERS

24/04/
2018

29/05/
2018

17/07/
2018

03/08/
2018

22/08/
2018

03/10/
2018

29/10/
2018

31/10/
2018

19/11/
2018

10/12/
2018

21/01/
2019

15/02/
2019

07/03/
2019

Ms Khanyisile Kweyama

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

✓

Ms Babalwa Ngonyama

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

Mr Geoff Rothschild

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Ms Given Sibiya

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Ms Janine Hills

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

x

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Mr Kuseni Dlamini

x

x

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

x

x

✓

✓

Ms Lehlohonolo Bonoko

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Mr Mpho Makwana

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

x

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

✓

x

Ms Muditambi Ravele

✓

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

x

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Mr Rashid Lombard

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Mr Stavros Nicoloau

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

* Ms Thembi Kunene Msimang

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

x

Mr Mzimkulu Malunga

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

x

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

*Ms Thembi Kunene-Msimang was appointed as the Acting Chief Executive Officer of Brand South Africa, effective 13 August 2018.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
In terms of the provisions of the Board Charter, the Board is mandated to form committees to help carry out its fiduciary duties.
The following Board Committees were in place, during the period under review:
•
Audit and Risk Committee (ARCO);
•
Human Capital, Remuneration and Social & Ethics Committee (HCRSEC); and
•
Marketing Committee (MARCO).
All Board Committees comprised members of the Board. EXCO members attend meetings by invitation. Committees may seek external or independent professional advice to carry out
their duties in accordance with the Board Policy on Access to Professional Advice. Board committees are all chaired by non-executive trustees.

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE (ARCO)
ARCO’s responsibilities include:
•
Ensuring the integrity, reliability, and accuracy of accounting and financial reporting systems;
•
Evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of internal audit and risk management;
•
Maintaining transparent and appropriate relationships with external auditors;
•
Reviewing the scope, quality and cost of the statutory audit and the independence and objectivity of the auditors; and
•
Ensuring compliance with applicable legislation and the requirements of regulatory authorities, especially those set out in the PFMA.
During the period under review, ARCO held four ordinary meetings in accordance with the organisation’s annual calendar, plus four special meetings. Ms Given Sibiya served as Chairperson
of the Committee.

4

ARCO meeting attendance 2018/2019
MEETING DATES
MEMBERS

12/04/
2018

22/05/
2018

18/07/
2018

23/07/
2018

11/10/
2018

16/10/
2018

24/01/
2019

11/03/
2019

Ms Given Sibiya

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Mr Geoff Rothschild

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

✓

Ms Janine Hills

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Ms Muditambi Ravele

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

✓

✓

✓

Ms Thuli Mashanda

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Mr Luyanda Mangquku

✓

✓

✓

x

✓

✓

✓

✓

Ms Dikeledi Thindisa

x

✓

✓

x

x

✓

x

✓
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HUMAN CAPITAL, REMUNERATION AND SOCIAL & ETHICS COMMITTEE (HCRSEC)
The terms of reference of the HCRSEC, as approved by the Board, address aspects of membership, structure, authority, and duties. The responsibilities of this Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on:
•
All policy matters that affect the employer-employee relationship;
•
All policy matters dealing with remuneration, recruitment, selection, the appointment and the remuneration of executives;
•
All policy matters that affect the mental, social and physical wellbeing of staff;
•
All policy matters relating to social and ethics, as contemplated in the Companies Act, Act No. 71 of 2008; and
•
Approving human resource strategies and the organisational structure.
HCRSEC held four ordinary meetings during the reporting period, plus four special meetings. The Committee was chaired by Mr Stavros Nicolaou.
HCRSEC meeting attendance 2018/19
MEETING DATES
MEMBERS

72

05/04/
2018

19/06/
2018

05/07/
2018

09/10/
2018

23/10/
2018

06/11/
2018

05/02/
2019

12/02/
2019

Mr Stavros Nicolaou

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Mr Mzimkulu Malunga

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Mr Mpho Makwana

✓

✓

x

✓

x

x

x

x

Ms Lehlohonolo Bonoko

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Ms Given Sibiya

✓

x

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Mr Kuseni Dlamini

✓

x

✓

✓

x

x

x

x
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MARKETING COMMITTEE (MARCO)
MARCO is responsible for advancing the mandate of Brand South Africa by overseeing the development and implementation of effective marketing and communications strategies. Its
mandate includes:
•
Reviewing the marketing policy and protocols, and recommending the same to the Board for approval;
•
Offering expert advice and feedback on Brand South Africa’s marketing and communications activities and resources;
•
Identifying areas of marketing and communications weaknesses and recommending remedial actions;
•
Acting as a resource to advise management on serious communications issues; and
•
Reviewing and recommending corporate profile policies and issues relating to Brand South Africa’s branding.
During the reporting period, MARCO was chaired by Mr Mpho Makwana and held four meetings in accordance with its annual calendar. In addition, two special meetings were held during
the period under review.
MARCO meeting attendance 2018/19
MEETING DATES
MEMBERS

17/04/
2018

25/07/
2018

22/10/
2018

28/01/
2019

11/02/
2019

19/03/
2019

Mr Mpho Makwana

✓

x

✓

✓

✓

✓

* Ms Thembi Kunene-Msimang

x

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Ms Janine Hills

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Ms Muditambi Ravele

✓

✓

x

✓

✓

✓

Mr Rashid Lombard

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Mr Mzimkulu Malunga

x

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

** Mr Arthur Mafokate

x

-

-

-

-

-

4

*Ms Thembi Kunene-Msimang was appointed as the Acting Chief Executive Officer of Brand South Africa effective 13 August 2018, until 08 April 2019.
**Mr Arthur Mafokate resigned as a Trustee of Brand South Africa on 25 April 2018.
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BOARD EVALUATIONS

FRAUD AND UNETHICAL CONDUCT

BOARD SECRETARY

As recommended by the King Report on Corporate
Governance for South Africa, 2016 (King IV), Board
committee evaluations were conducted by an
independent evaluator towards the end of the financial
year with a view to improving Board performance.
King IV recommends that Board evaluations should be
conducted at least once in two years.

Brand South Africa’s Policy on Whistle-Blowing
encourages employees to report any acts of fraud,
dishonesty and any other form of unethical behaviour
in accordance with the Protected Disclosures Act,
No.26 of 2000 and the Companies Act, Act No.71 of
2008. A 24-hour hotline is in place and employees
are constantly encouraged to use the hotline and are
given the assurance that they will not suffer any form of
victimisation or reprisals as a result of having reported
any matter in good faith. A Fraud Prevention Policy is also
in place.

The Director: Governance, Legal and Board Secretariat
serves as the Board Secretary and is responsible for
ensuring the proper conduct of Board meetings. The
Board Secretary provides support and guidance to the
Board on matters relating to governance, legislation,
compliance, and ethics. His function includes the
preparation and circulation of Board papers and
minutes of meetings, ensuring that the Board and its
Committees are timeously provided with feedback. He is
also responsible for making Trustees aware of laws and
legislation relevant to or affecting the organisation and
ensuring the proper retention of Brand South Africa’s
important records.

BOARD REMUNERATION
Board remuneration paid during the year under review
has been disclosed in the annual financial statements
of the organisation in line with good corporate
governance practice.

RISK MANAGEMENT
Risks relating to the business of Brand South Africa are
managed in accordance with the PFMA, as amended,
as well as recommended good corporate governance
practices. The Risk Management Strategy and Risk
Materiality Framework help to ensure that all risks are
kept at a manageable level.

AVOIDING CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS
Trustees have a duty to disclose their personal interests
in any of the items which are on the agenda at Board
meetings. Declaration of conflicts of interests remained
a standing agenda item throughout the year. In addition,
Trustees are required to submit annual declarations
of interests.

CODE OF CONDUCT
The Trustees of Brand South Africa remain committed to
achieving high standards of business integrity and ethics
across all of the organisation’s activities. The Board has a
Code of Conduct which sets out the required standard of
conduct expected of Trustees, how to deal with dissent,
how to manage conflicts of interests, expected disclosures
and the management of external appointments.
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In addition, the Board Secretary has certain statutory
duties to perform in terms of the Companies Act,
Act No.71 of 2008, and other regulations. The Board
Chairperson and all Trustees have unrestricted access to
the services of the Board Secretary.
The Board Secretary also ensures that Brand South
Africa’s processes and practices are reviewed and
benchmarked on an on-going basis to ensure compliance
with local and international governance standards.

EXCO PROFILES

Ms. Thulisile Manzini
Acting Chief Executive Officer
Ms Manzini, the Acting Chief Executive
Officer, is responsible for providing the
overall strategic direction of the entity.
This is done through sound financial and
human resource management, strategic
domestic and international engagements,
brand marketing, reputation management
and communication to give effect to the
achievement of the National Development
Plan and other key programmes of
government.
Qualifications
Ms Manzini holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Education from the University of Zululand,
a Post Graduate Diploma in Business
Administration obtained at the Wits
Business School, as well as a short course on
Women and Leadership Development from
the Singapore Management University.

Adv Sifiso S. Nyoni
Director: Governance, Legal
and Board Secretariat
Adv. Nyoni serves as the Board Secretary.
He heads the Governance and Legal
Division, which also serves as the Board
Secretariat. The Division is the gatekeeper of good corporate governance
in the organisation, including legal
compliance.
Qualifications
Insolvency Law and Practice (SARIPA/
UP); a Cert. Advanced Corporate Law
& Securities Law (UNISA), Cert. Board
Governance & Compliance Management
(UJ); LLB (UNISA); LLM (UP); Chartered
Marketer (SA); MSc Marketing and
Product Management (Cranfield, UK);
and a BSc Agric Ed (UNISWA). He also
participated in the Top Management
Programme offered by the National
University of Singapore
(Business School).

Ms. Sithembile Ntombela
Acting Chief Marketing Officer
Ms Ntombela is the General Manager of
Marketing at Brand South Africa. She is a
Chartered Marketer (SA) with extensive
classical marketing experience in FMCG,
strategy development, global marketing,
and destination marketing. With 20 years’
experience in Marketing, she has held senior
managerial positions at Nampak Tissues,
Foodcorp, Tiger Brands, Unilever and Pioneer
Foods. Her experience includes developing
and implementing impactful brand strategies
and campaigns for Proudly South African and
multinational brands. Her experience has
also afforded her an opportunity to judge a
number of prestigious awards such as Gender
Mainstreaming Awards by Business Engage, The
Loeries Young Creatives Award, The 100 Young
Independent SADC Award and Marketing
Achievers Awards.
Ms Ntombela is responsible for the brand
strategy development and bringing the
strategy to life through various domestic and
international marketing campaigns.
Qualifications
Marketing Management at the University of KZN
(MUT), Cert. Strategic Marketing (UCT School
of Business), Chartered Marketer (SA), Cert.
Strategic Brand Management (AAA school of
advertising), PG Diploma in Marketing and BPhil
(Hon) Marketing.

Mr. Kgomotso Seripe
Acting Chief Financial Officer

Dr Krishnee Kissoonduth
Director: Corporate Services

Mr Seripe is responsible for providing
strategic financial leadership for the
organisation and the management of the
operational function, including finance
and supply chain to ensure effective and
professional accounting, reporting and
control of funding and budgets.
Qualifications
B.Com Accounting Honours with Unisa and
served SAICA articles with the office of the
Auditor-General in 2005 until 2008. He was
then appointed as Assistant Manager in AGSA
and Chairperson for Assistant Managers then
proceeded to be the Financial Manager of
Brand South Africa in May 2014.
He is currently registered as an AGA (SA)
member of the South African Institute of the
Chartered Accountants (SAICA).

Dr Kissoonduth is responsible for leading
and managing the Corporate Services (CS)
Department at Brand South Africa, which
consists of Human Capital, Information
Technology, as well as Strategic Planning and
Performance Information Management. The
department ensures the provision of efficient
and effective corporate services to Brand
South Africa in accordance with legislative
and statutory requirements, in order to
support the delivery of the organisational
goals contained in the strategic and annual
performance plans.

4

Qualifications
Doctorate Degree in Public Administration
(Unisa). Master’s Degree in Public
Administration (University of Pretoria)
Presidential Strategic Leadership
Development Programme (University of
North West) Bachelor of Science Degree
in Computer Science (Unisa) Non-graduate
Higher Education Diploma (Springfield
College of Education)
Dr Kissoonduth is accredited as a:
Master Reward Professional (South African
Reward Association)
Master Human Resources Professional (South
African Board for People Practices)
Global Remuneration Professional
(South African Reward Association and
WorldatWork)
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BOARD PROFILES

Ms Khanyisile Kweyama
Chairperson of the Board
•
•
•
•

Postgraduate Diploma in Management
Masters in Management (Thesis pending)
Qualifications in Administration and
Human Resources Management
Studied BSc in Management in Virginia,
United States of America

Ms Babalwa Ngonyama
Deputy Chairperson of the Board
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

B. Compt (Hons)
CA(SA)
MBA
H.Dip Banking Law
Strategic Planning and Strategy
Development
Strategy Review
Governance
Business Planning
Financial Planning and Budgeting
Risk Management

Mr Mzimkulu Malunga
•
•

Strategic Marketing and
Communications
HR and Remuneration
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•

•
•

Post Graduate Diploma, Retail
Management
Certificate, Executive
Development Programme
B. Admin (Hons), Public
Management

LLB (law) degree

Ms Muditambi Ravele

•
•

B.Tech (Business Administration)
Executive Sports Management
Programme
Strategic Executive Marketing
Programme
Diploma in Sports Management

•
•

Mr Mpho Makwana

•
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Ms Lehlohonolo Bonoko

Mr Stavros Nicolaou
•
•

B.Pharm (Wits University)
Fellow of the Pharmaceutical
Society of South Africa

Mr Geoffrey Rothschild
•
•

CA(SA)
CM(SA)

Mr Rashid Lombard
•
•
•
•
•

Strategic Marketing and
Communications
Photographic Editor and Curator
Events Training and Development
Executive Producer Television
Cultural Festivals Designer

Mr Kuseni Dlamini

Ms Given Sibiya
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Quality Assessor (IIASA)
ABASA Executive Leadership
Development Programme
Registered Assessor (SAICA)
CA(SA) (SAICA)
Post Grad Dip (Accounting)
B.Acc
B.Com

•

Graduate of the Universities of
KwaZulu-Natal, Durban, and
Oxford where he was a Rhodes
Scholar

Ms Janine Hills
•

•

Management Advance
Programme (Wits Business
School)
Marketing Diploma at Institute
of Marketing Management

Ms Thembi Kunene - Msimang
•
•
•

BA Communications
Management Development
Programme
Finance for Non-Financial
Management

4
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Brand South Africa Trust Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Board of Trustees’ Responsibilities and
Approval
The Trustees are required by the Public Finance
Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain adequate
accounting records and are responsible for the content
and integrity of the annual financial statements and
related financial information included in this report. It
is the responsibility of the Trustees to ensure that the
annual financial statements fairly present the state of
affairs of Brand South Africa as at the end of the financial
year and the results of its operations and cash flows for
the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged
to express an independent opinion on the annual
financial statements and was given unrestricted access to
all financial records and related data.
The annual financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations,
guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting
Standards Board.
The annual financial statements are based upon
appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and
supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates.
The Trustees acknowledge that they are ultimately
responsible for the system of internal financial control
established by the entity and place considerable
importance on maintaining a strong control
environment. To enable the Trustees to meet these
responsibilities, management sets standards for internal
control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit
in a cost effective manner. The standards include the
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proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly
defined framework, effective accounting procedures
and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an
acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout the entity and all employees are required
to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring
the entity’s business is conducted in a manner that in
all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The
focus of risk management in the entity is on identifying,
assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms
of risk across the entity. While operating risk cannot be
fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it
by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls,
systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed
within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The Trustees are of the opinion, based on the information
and explanations given by management, that the system
of internal control provides reasonable assurance that
the financial records may be relied on for the preparation
of the annual financial statements. However, any
system of internal financial control can provide only
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or deficit.
The Trustees have reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast
for the year to 31 March 2019 and, in the light of this
review and the current financial position, they are
satisfied that the entity has or has access to adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future.
Brand South Africa reports to the Department of
Communications (DoC). The entity is wholly dependent
on the DoC for continued funding of operations. The
annual financial statements are prepared on the basis
that Brand South Africa is a going concern and that DoC

has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or
curtail materially the scale of the Brand South Africa’s
operations.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 86 -133,
which have been prepared on the going concern basis,
were approved by the Chairperson of the Board on
31 May 2018 and were signed by:

Khanyisile Thandiwe Kweyama
Chairperson of the Board

Brand South Africa Trust Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Audit and Risk Committee Report
We are pleased to present our report for the financial
year ended 31 March 2019.

The audit and risk committee is satisfied with the content
and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared
and issued by the management of Brand South Africa
during the year under review.

Audit and Risk Committee responsibility

Evaluation of annual financial statements

The audit and risk committee reports that it has complied
with its responsibilities arising from section 55(1)(a) of
the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 27.1.

The audit and risk committee has reviewed and discussed
the audited annual financial statements to be included in
the annual report.

The audit and risk committee also reports that it has
adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its
audit committee charter, has regulated its affairs in
compliance with this charter and has discharged all its
responsibilities as contained therein.

•

•
•

The effectiveness of internal control
•
In line with the PFMA and the King IV Report on
Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit
provides the audit and risk committee and management
with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate
and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk
management process, as well as the identification of
corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the
controls and processes. Based on the issues reported in
the Auditor-General South Africa’s management report
that indicate some deficiencies in the system of internal
controls, especially around SCM processes, the audit
and risk committee believes that the entity’s system of
internal controls were partially effective. Management is
in the process of addressing the identified weaknesses.

Reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa’s
management report and management’s response
thereto and reviewed Brand South Africa’s
compliance with legal and regulatory provisions;
Reviewed changes in accounting policies and
practices;
Reviewed the entities compliance with legal and
regulatory provisions; and
Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the
audit.

Internal audit
The audit and risk committee is satisfied that the internal
audit function is operating effectively and that it has
addressed the risks pertinent to Brand South Africa and
its audits.

Given Sibiya
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee
Date: 04/08/2019

The audit and risk committee concur with and accept
the Auditor-General of South Africa’s report the annual
financial statements, and are of the opinion that the
audited annual financial statements should be accepted
and read together with the report of the Auditor-General
of South Africa.
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Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament
on Brand South Africa Trust
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Qualified opinion
1. I have audited the financial statements of the Brand
South Africa Trust set out on pages 78 to 133, which
comprise statement of financial position as at
31 March 2019, the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets and
cash flow statement and statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts for the year then ended,
as well as the notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting
policies.
2. In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters
described in the basis for qualified opinion section
of this auditor’s report, the financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Brand South Africa Trust as at
31 March 2019, and its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with the South African Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practices (SA Standards of
GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance
Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA).
Basis for qualified opinion
Payables from exchange transactions
3. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence for expenditure and payables from
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exchange transactions due to the poor status of
the accounting records. I was unable to confirm
the expenditure and payables from exchange
transactions by alternative means. Consequently,
I was unable to determine whether any further
adjustments were necessary to expenditure and
payables from exchange transactions stated at
R155 303 623 (note 24 and 25) and R24 379 833
(note 16) respectively in the financial statements.
Context for the opinion
4. I conducted my audit in accordance with the
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor-General’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of this
auditor’s report.
5. I am independent of the public entity in accordance
with sections 290 and 291 of the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics
for professional accountants (IESBA code), parts 1
and 3 of the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards) and the ethical requirements
that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the IESBA codes.
6. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
qualified opinion.

Responsibilities of accounting authority for the financial
statements
7. The board of trustees, which constitutes the
accounting authority is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with SA Standards of
GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA, and for
such internal control as the accounting authority
determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
8. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting
authority is responsible for assessing the Brand
South Africa Trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating
to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the appropriate governance
structure either intends to liquidate the public entity
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.
Auditor-General’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements
9. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on Brand South Africa Trust
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
10. A further description of my responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is included in the
annexure to this auditor’s report.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE REPORT INTRODUCTION
AND SCOPE
11. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South
Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the
general notice issued in terms thereof, I have
a responsibility to report material findings on
the reported performance information against
predetermined objectives for selected programmes
presented in the annual performance report. I
performed procedures to identify findings but not to
gather evidence to express assurance.
12. My procedures address the reported performance
information, which must be based on the approved
performance planning documents of the public
entity. I have not evaluated the completeness and
appropriateness of the performance indicators
included in the planning documents. My procedures
also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions
relating to planned performance strategies and
information in respect of future periods that may
be included as part of the reported performance
information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend
to these matters.
13. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the
reported performance information in accordance
with the criteria developed from the performance

management and reporting framework, as defined
in the general notice, for the following selected
programmes presented in the annual performance
report of the public entity for the year ended
31 March 2019:

Programmes

Pages in
the Annual
performance
report

Programme 2 – Brand, marketing
and reputation management

139 - 142

Programme 3 – Stakeholder
relationships

143 - 144

14. I performed procedures to determine whether the
reported performance information was properly
presented and whether performance was consistent
with the approved performance planning documents.
I performed further procedures to determine whether
the indicators and related targets were measurable
and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the
reported performance information to determine
whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

These material misstatements were on the reported
performance information of Brand, marketing
and reputation management. As management
subsequently corrected the misstatements, I did not
raise any material findings on the usefulness and
reliability of the reported performance information.

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH LEGISLATION INTRODUCTION
AND SCOPE
18. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice
issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to
report material findings on the compliance of the
public entity with specific matters in key legislation. I
performed procedures to identify findings but not to
gather evidence to express assurance.
19. The material findings on compliance with specific
matters in key legislations are as follows:
Annual financial statements

15. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness
and reliability of the reported performance
information for these programmes:
• Programme 2 – Brand, marketing and reputation
management
• Programme 3 – Stakeholder relationships

20. The financial statements submitted for auditing
were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed
financial reporting framework as required by section
55(1)(b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements
identified by the auditors in the submitted financial
statements were not adequately corrected, which
resulted in the financial statements receiving a
qualified opinion.

Other matter

Expenditure Management

16. I draw attention to the matter below.

21. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to
prevent irregular expenditure amounting to
R25 452 838 as disclosed in note 38 to the annual
financial statements, as required by section 51(1)(b)
(ii) of the PFMA. The irregular expenditure incurred in
the current year relates to the irregular appointment

Adjustments of material misstatements
17. I identified material misstatements in the annual
performance report submitted for auditing.
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Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on Brand South Africa Trust
of suppliers, an award made to connected persons,
awards without SBD 4 forms and the irregular
appointment of the company responsible for
trademark registration.

25. My opinion on the financial statements and findings
on the reported performance information and
compliance with legislation do not cover the other
information and I do not express an audit opinion or
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Procurement and contract management
22. Some of the quotations were accepted from
prospective suppliers who did not submit a declaration
on whether they are employed by the state or
connected to any person employed by the state,
which is prescribed in order to comply with treasury
regulation 16A8.3. A contract was awarded to a bidder
who did not submit a declaration on whether they are
employed by the state or connected to any person
employed by the state, which is prescribed in order to
comply with treasury regulation 16A8.3.
23. In some instances, persons in service of the public
entity whose close family member, partners or
associates had a private or business interest in
contracts awarded by the public entity failed to
disclose such interest, as required by treasury
regulation 16A8.4.

OTHER INFORMATION
24. The accounting authority is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report which
includes the audit committee’s report. The other
information does not include the financial statements,
the auditor’s report and those selected programmes
presented in the annual performance report that have
been specifically reported in this auditor’s report.
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26. In connection with my audit, my responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements and the
selected programmes presented in the annual
performance report, or my knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
27. If based on the work I have performed, I conclude
that there is a material misstatement in this other
information, I am required to report that fact. I have
nothing to report in this regard.

INTERNAL CONTROL DEFICIENCIES
28. I considered internal control relevant to my audit
of the financial statements, reported performance
information and compliance with applicable
legislation; however, my objective was not to express
any form of assurance on it. The matters reported
below are limited to the significant internal control
deficiencies that resulted in the basis for the qualified
opinion and the findings on compliance with
legislation included in this report.
29. Leadership of the public entity did not exercise
adequate oversight of the effectiveness of the
implemented internal controls regarding financial
reporting and compliance with certain requirements
of the PFMA.

30. Management did not prepare regular, accurate and
complete financial and performance reports that are
supported and evidenced by reliable information.
31. Management did not review and monitor compliance
with applicable laws and regulations.

OTHER REPORTS
32. I draw attention to the following engagements
conducted by various parties that had, or could have,
an impact on the matters reported in the public
entity’s financial statements, reported performance
information, compliance with applicable legislation
and other related matters. These reports did not form
part of my opinion on the financial statements or my
findings on the reported performance information or
compliance with legislation.
33. An independent consultant was investigating an
allegation of the possible misappropriation of the
public entity’s assets at the request of the public
entity, concluded in 2014. These proceedings were in
progress at the date of this auditor’s report.

Johannesburg
31 July 2019

Annexure – Auditor-General’s responsibility
for the audit
1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs,
I exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout my audit of the
financial statements, and the procedures performed
on reported performance information for selected
programmes and on the public entity’s compliance
with respect to the selected subject matters.

•

obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
public entity’s internal control;

•

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the board of directors, which constitutes
the accounting authority;

•

conclude on the appropriateness of the board
of directors, which constitutes the accounting
authority’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements. I also conclude, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Brand
South Africa Trust ability to continue as a
going concern. If I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw
attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements about
the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the

•

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the
financial statements as described in this auditor’s
report, I also:
•

identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

financial statements. My conclusions are based
on the information available to me at the date
of this auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause an entity to cease
continuing as a going concern; and
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE
3. I communicate with the accounting authority
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that I identify during my audit.
4. I also confirm to the accounting authority that I
have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and communicate all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to have a bearing on my independence
and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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General Information
Country of incorporation and domicile
Nature of business and principal activities

South Africa
The primary objective of the Trust is to develop and implement proactive and co-ordinated marketing, communications
and reputation management strategies for South Africa. The ultimate aim is to make a contribution towards economic
growth, job creation, poverty alleviation and social cohesion by encouraging local and foreign investment, tourism and
trade through the promotion of Brand South Africa.
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Khanyisile Kweyama (Chairperson)
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Statement of Financial Position

2019
R

Note(s)

2018
R

Assets
Current Assets
Prepayments

11

829,952

954,044

Receivables from exchange transactions

12

1,709,895

1,116,769

Cash and cash equivalents

14

26,666,525

28,208,262

29,206,372

30,279,075

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

4

5,026,063

6,145,011

Intangible assets

6

7,590,909

11,381,667

Heritage assets

7

170,556

170,556

Deposits

8

995,974

966,575

Operating lease asset

9

7,985

-

13,791,487

18,663,809

42,997,859

48,942,884

Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Operating lease liability

8

1,029,660

785,047

Payables from exchange transactions

16

24,379,833

9,726,971

Provisions

15

Total Liabilities

88

10,210,332

8,310,710

35,619,825

18,822,728

35,619,825

18,822,728

Net Assets

7,378,034

30,120,156

Accumulated surplus

7,378,034

30,120,156
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Statement of Financial Performance
Note(s)

2019
R

2018
R

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Other income

18

187,532

398,728

Partnership income

19

12,167,117

5,529,737

Finance income

21

1,695,839

1,578,025

14,050,488

7,506,490

Total revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants and subsidies

20

200,430,000

194,300,000

Total revenue

17

214,480,488

201,806,490

Expenditure
Employee related costs

22

66,404,597

59,772,080

Depreciation and amortisation

4&6

6,123,922

4,525,412

Impairment of assets

4&5

-

25,976

23

-

1,852

Finance costs
Lease rentals on operating lease
Debt Impairment
Impairment of financial asset

27

4,163,946

4,412,229

12&13

544

315,934

8&13

-

110,530

Repairs and maintenance

28

70,535

401,238

Research fees

25

7,495,717

7,271,452

Branding and collateral

25

5,897,199

2,913,201

Media buy

25

30,051,604

45,720,462

Agency fees

25

9,735,040

16,192,181

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment

-

Loss on foreign exchange

458,426

Loss on disposal of assets
Activation costs

25

General Expenses

24

5

(4,058)
224,366

94,388

44,876

71,335,576

43,426,736

30,788,487

25,483,872

Total expenditure

232,619,981

210,838,339

Deficit for the year ended 31 March 2019

(18,139,493)

(9,031,849)
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Balance at 01 April 2017
Deficit for the year
Total changes

39,152,005
(9,031,849)
(9,031,849)

2018
R
39,152,005
(9,031,849)
(9,031,849)

Balance at 1 April 2018

30,120,156

30,120,156

Deficit for the year

(18,139,493)

(18,139,493)

(4,602,629)

(4,602,629)

(22,742,122)

(22,742,122)

7,378,034

7,378,034

Transfer previous year rollover to National Treasury
Total changes
Balance at 31 March 2019

90

2019
R

Brand South Africa | Annual Report 2018/19

Brand South Africa Trust Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Cash Flow Statement

2019
R

Note(s)

2018
R

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Grants
Finance income

200,430,000

194,300,000

1,621,117

1,575,371

Other receipts

11,806,302

5,039,788

Total receipts

213,857,419

200,915,159

(63,934,542)

(59,836,175)

Suppliers

(145,589,966)

(127,117,886)

Total payments

(209,524,508)

(186,954,061)

Payments
Employee costs

Net cash outflows from operating activities

29

4,332,911

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

4

(1,154,054)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

4

Purchase of other intangible assets

6

13,961,098

Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash outflows from investing activities

-

(2,904,695)
6,112

(117,965)

(5,291,423)

(1,272,019)

(8,190,006)

Cash flows from financing activities
Payment to National Treasury

(4,602,629)

Finance lease payments

-

Net cash out flows from financing activities

(4,602,629)

(137,851)
(137,851)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(1,541,737)

5,633,241

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

28,208,262

22,575,021

26,666,525

28,208,262

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year

14
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Approved
budget
R

Final
Budget
R

Adjustments
R

Actual amounts on
comparable basis
R

Difference
between final
budget and actual
R

Reference
R

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Other income

-

187,532

187,532

187,532

-

Partnership Income

-

11,508,144

11,508,144

11,508,144

-

Interest received - investment

-

1,621,117

1,621,117

1,621,117

-

Total revenue from exchange transactions

-

13,316,793

13,316,793

13,316,793

-

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants and subsidies

200,430,000

-

200,430,000

200,430,000

-

Total revenue

200,430,000

13,316,793

213,746,793

213,746,793

-

Expenditure
66,490,000

-

66,490,000

64,056,286

(2,433,714)

(i)

103,413,097

8,586,364

111,999,461

108,173,631

(3,825,830)

(ii)

Capital Expenditure

3,055,129

-

3,055,129

1,272,018

(1,783,111)

(iii)

Operating Expenses

27,471,774

-

27,471,774

26,125,834

(1,345,940)

(iv)

200,430,000

8,586,364

209,016,364

199,627,769

(9,388,595)

Personnel
Brand Communication and Reputation Costs

Total expenditure

(i) The personnel budget savings were due to the vacancies and the moratorium placed on current vacancies.
(ii) The budget savings are mainly attributable to the entity not being able to secure a digital management agency in the current financial year which would ordinarily cost R8,4 million per year and
over the years the failure to secure a domestic PR agency which has resulted in budget savings.
(iii) The capital budget savings is due to the IT network infrastructure upgrade not carried out because of the moratorium on lease of the building.
(iv) The operating budget realised savings in the current financial mainly due to the country offices not being able to secure office space in respective markets.
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Accounting Policies
1. PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.3 Significant judgements and sources of
estimation uncertainty

The annual financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting
Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the
Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

In preparing the annual financial statements,
management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts represented in
the annual financial statements and related disclosures.
Use of available information and the application of
judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates.
Actual results in the future could differ from these
estimates which may be material to the annual financial
statements. Significant judgements include:

These annual financial statements have been
prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in
accordance with historical cost convention as the basis
of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are
presented in South African Rand.
A summary of the significant accounting policies, which
have been consistently applied in the preparation of
these annual financial statements, are disclosed below.
These accounting policies are consistent with the
previous period.
1.1 Presentation currency
These annual financial statements are presented in South
African Rand, which is the functional currency of
Brand South Africa.
1.2 Going concern assumption
These annual financial statements have been prepared
based on the expectation that Brand South Africa will
continue to operate as a going concern for at least the
next 12 months.

Impairment testing
The entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when
events or changes in circumstances suggest that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the
lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely
independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If
there are indications that impairment may have occurred,
estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each
group of assets. These are based on estimated fair values and
or value in use for each asset or group of assets.
Provisions

Trade receivables
Brand South Africa assesses its trade and other
receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting
period. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus
or deficit makes judgements as to whether there is
observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.
The impairment for trade and other receivables is
calculated on an individual basis, based on historical
performance, adjusted for specific current economic
conditions and other indicators present at the reporting
date that correlate with the defaults on the debtor.
Fair value estimation
The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables is assumed to approximate
their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current market
interest rate that is available to the entity for similar
financial instruments.

In all provisions raised, management determined an
estimate based on the information available.
Useful lives of assets
The entity’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for property,plant
and equipment as well as intangibles assets. Management
adjusts the depreciation charge where useful lives are
different from previously estimated useful lives.
Allowance for doubtful debts

5

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus
and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is
impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference
between the debtors carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.
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1.4 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current
assets that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative
purposes, and are expected to be used during more than
one period.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised as an asset when:
•

•

it is probable that future economic benefits or service
potential associated with the item will flow to the
entity; and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at
cost.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is
the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted
in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange
transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of
acquisition.
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is
acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or
monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and nonmonetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured
at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value
was not determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying
amount of the asset(s) given up.
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When significant components of an item of property,
plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or
construct an item of property, plant and equipment
and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part
of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in
the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and
servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the
definition of property, plant and equipment.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the
straight line basis over their expected useful lives.
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item

Depreciation method

Average useful life

Leasehold improvements

Straight line

Lease term

Furniture and fixtures

Straight line

10 - 17 years

Motor vehicles

Straight line

5 years

Office equipment

Straight line

5 - 13 years

IT equipment

Straight line

2 - 10 years

Finance leased office equipment

Straight line

Lease term

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a
systematic basis over its useful life.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment
with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost
of the item is depreciated separately.
The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in
which the asset’s future economic benefits or service
potential are expected to be consumed by Brand South
Africa. The depreciation method applied to an asset is
reviewed at least at each reporting date and, if there
has been a significant change in the expected pattern

of consumption of the future economic benefits or
service potential embodied in the asset, the method is
changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.
Brand South Africa assesses at each reporting date
whether there is any indication that Brand South Africa
expectations about the residual value and the useful life
of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting
date. If any such indication exists, Brand South Africa
revises the expected useful life and/or residual value
accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in
an accounting estimate.
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1.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised
in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying
amount of another asset.
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised
when the asset is disposed of or when there are no
further economic benefits or service potential expected
from the use of the asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item
of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus
or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss
arising from the derecognition of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the item.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a nonexchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of
acquisition is measured at its fair value as at that date.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an
internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is
incurred.
An intangible asset arising from development (or
from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised when:
•
•
•
•
•

Brand South Africa separately discloses expenditure to
repair and maintain property, plant and equipment in the
notes to the financial statements.

•

it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that
it will be available for use or sale;
there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
there is an ability to use or sell it;
it will generate probable future economic benefits or
service potential;
there are available technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use
or sell the asset; and
the expenditure attributable to the asset during its
development can be measured reliably.

1.5 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised when:
•

•

it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits or service potential that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the entity; and
the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Brand South Africa assesses the probability of expected
future economic benefits or service potential using
reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent
management’s best estimate of the set of economic
conditions that will exist over the useful life of the asset.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a
finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an
indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the
asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying
amount is amortised over its useful life.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible
assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as
follows:

Item

Depreciation
method

Average
useful life

Computer software
and licences

Straight line

3-5 years

The entity discloses relevant information relating to
assets under construction or development, in the notes
to the financial statements (see note 5).
Intangible assets are derecognised:
•
•

on disposal; or
when no future economic benefits or service
potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of
intangible assets is included in surplus or deficit when the
asset is derecognised.
1.6 Heritage assets
Class of heritage assets means a grouping of heritage
assets of a similar nature or function in an entity’s
operations that is shown as a single item for the purpose
of disclosure in the annual financial statements.
Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural,
environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological
or artistic significance and are held indefinitely for the
benefit of present and future generations.

5

Recognition
The entity recognises a heritage asset as an asset if it is
probable that future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the asset will flow to the entity, and the cost
or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
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1.6 Heritage assets (continued)
Initial measurement

variable, provided in the case of a non-financial
variable that the variable is not specific to a party to
the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying’).

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a heritage
asset is included in surplus or deficit or deficit when the
item is derecognised (unless the Standard of GRAP on leases
requires otherwise on a sale and leaseback).

Heritage assets are measured at cost.

•

It requires no initial net investment or an initial net
investment that is smaller than would be required for
other types of contracts that would be expected to
have a similar response to changes in market factors.

•

It is settled at a future date.

1.7 Financial instruments
Where a heritage asset is acquired through a non-exchange
transaction, its cost is measured at its fair value as at the date
of acquisition.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a
residual interest of another entity.

Subsequent measurement
After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets is
carried at its cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Impairment
Brand South Africa assesses at each reporting date
whether there is an indication that heritage assets may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity
estimates the recoverable amount or the recoverable
service amount of the heritage asset.
Transfers
Transfers from heritage assets are only made when
the particular asset no longer meets the definition of a
heritage asset.
Transfers to heritage assets are only made when the asset
meets the definition of a heritage asset.
Derecognition
The entity derecognises heritage asset on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits or service potential are
expected from its use or disposal.
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The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
is the amount at which the financial asset or financial
liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount,
and minus any reduction (directly or through the use of
an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation.
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised
financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s
Statement of Financial Position.
A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract
with all three of the following characteristics:
•

Its value changes in response to the change in a
specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of
prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other

A financial asset is:
• cash;
• a residual interest of another entity; or
• a contractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from
another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities
with another entity under conditions that are
potentially favourable to Brand South Africa.
A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual
obligation to:
• deliver cash or another financial asset to another
entity; or
• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under
conditions that are potentially unfavourable to Brand
South Africa.
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by Brand South
Africa in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest
rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to
the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market.
A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when
contractually due.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue
or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would
not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial
instrument.

Class
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables from exchange transactions
Other financial asset

Category
Financial asset measured at fair value
Financial asset measured at fair value
Financial asset measured at fair value

The Brand South Africa has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category)
as reflected on the face of the Statement of Financial Position or in the notes thereto:
Class

Category

Payables from exchange transactions
Lease liabilities

Financial liability measured at fair value
Financial liability measured at fair value

Initial recognition
Brand South Africa recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of
Financial Position when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or nonderivative financial liabilities that have fixed or determinable payments, excluding those
instruments that:
•

Brand South Africa designates at fair value at initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The Brand South Africa measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial
recognition using the following categories:

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured.

•

Financial instruments at amortised cost.

Classification

Gains and losses

Brand South Africa has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as
reflected on the face of the Statement of Financial Position or in the notes thereto:

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability
measured at fair value is recognised in surplus or deficit .

5

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets measured at cost:

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in
surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial
liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the
amortisation process.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that
is not measured at fair value because its fair value cannot
be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses are not reversed.

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets
Brand South Africa assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

-

derecognise the asset; and
recognise separately any rights and obligations
created or retained in the transfer.

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated
between the rights or obligations retained and those
transferred on the basis of their relative fair values at the
transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are
measured at their fair values at that date. Any difference
between the consideration received and the amounts
recognised and derecognised is recognised in surplus or
deficit in the period of the transfer.

Derecognition
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Financial assets
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. The amount of
the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal
does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset
that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in surplus or deficit.
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Brand South Africa derecognises financial assets using
trade date accounting.
Brand South Africa derecognises a financial asset only
when:
•
•

•

the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
Brand South Africa transfers to another party
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset; or
Brand South Africa, despite having retained some
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, has transferred control of the
asset to another party and the other party has the
practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an
unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that
ability unilaterally and without needing to impose
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case,
Brand South Africa:

If Brand South Africa transfers a financial asset in a transfer
that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains
the right to service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise
either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that
servicing contract. If the fee to be received is not expected
to compensate the entity adequately for performing the
servicing, a servicing liability for the servicing obligation
is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is
expected to be more than adequate compensation for the
servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing
right at an amount determined on the basis of an allocation
of the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.
If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised
in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining
a new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability,
or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial
asset, financial liability or servicing liability at fair value.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.
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1.7 Financial instruments (continued)
If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and
the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety,
the previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is derecognised, based on the relative fair
values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this
purpose, a retained servicing asset is treated as a part that
continues to be recognised. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part derecognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised
is recognised in surplus or deficit.
If a transfer does not result in derecognition because
Brand South Africa has retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the transferred asset, Brand
South Africa continues to recognise the transferred asset
in its entirety and recognise a financial liability for the
consideration received. In subsequent periods, Brand
South Africa recognises any revenue on the transferred
asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability.
Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the
revenue, and the associated expenses are offset.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities
that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by
way of a non-exchange transaction are accounted for in
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from
Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers).
Presentation
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component
that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deficit. Losses and gains relating to
a financial instrument or a component that is a financial
liability is recognised as revenue or expense in surplus or
deficit.
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset
and the net amount presented in the Statement of
Financial Position when the entity currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

1.9 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it
does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership.
When a lease includes both land and buildings elements,
the entity assesses the classification of each element
separately.
Finance leases - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in
the Statement of Financial Position at amounts equal
to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the Statement of Financial Position as a finance lease
obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value
of the minimum lease payments is Brand South Africa’s
incremental borrowing rate.

Financial liabilities
Brand South Africa removes a financial liability (or a part of
a financial liability) from its Statement of Financial Position
when it is extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.
An exchange between an existing borrower and lender
of debt instruments with substantially different terms is
accounted for as having extinguished the original financial
liability and a new financial liability is recognised.
Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an
existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for
as having extinguished the original financial liability and
having recognised a new financial liability.

In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does
not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset
the transferred asset and the associated liability.
1.8 Tax
Tax expenses
Brand South Africa is exempt from taxation by the South
African Revenue Services (SARS) in terms of Section
10 (1)(ca)(1) of the Income Tax 58 of 1962 as amended.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability.
The finance charge is allocated to each period during the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on
the remaining balance of the liability.

5

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The difference between the amounts recognised as an
expense and the contractual payments are recognised as
an operating lease asset or liability.
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1.10 Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by
Brand South Africa in exchange for service rendered by
employees.
A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued
by an insurer that is not a related party (as defined in the
Standard of GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of Brand
South Africa, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only
to pay or fund employee benefits under a defined benefit
plan and are not available to Brand South Africa’s own
creditors (even in liquidation) and cannot be paid to Brand
South Africa, unless either:
•

•

the proceeds represent surplus assets that are
not needed for the policy to meet all the related
employee benefit obligations; or
the proceeds are returned to Brand South Africa to
reimburse it for employee benefits already paid.

provide post-employment benefits as well as to provide
benefits that are not consideration in exchange for
service rendered by employees.
A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives
from Brand South Africa’s actions where by an established
pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently
specific current statement, Brand South Africa has
indicated to other parties that it will accept certain
responsibilities and as a result, Brand South Africa has
created a valid expectation on the part of those other
parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are due to be
settled within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service.
Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a
result of either:
•

•

Brand South Africa’s decision to terminate an
employee’s employment before the normal
retirement date; or
an employee’s decision to accept voluntary
redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than post-employment benefits and
termination benefits) that are not due to be settled
within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service.
Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are
not conditional on future employment.
Composite social security programmes are established
by legislation and operate as multi-employer plans to
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•
•

•

•

wages, salaries and social security contributions;
short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual
leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for
the absences is due to be settled within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;
bonus, incentive and performance related payments
payable within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period in which the employees render the
related service; and
non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and
free or subsidised goods or services such as housing,
cars and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to Brand South
Africa during a reporting period, the entity recognise the
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

•

•

as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any
amount already paid. If the amount already paid
exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits,
Brand South Africa recognise that excess as an asset
(prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future
payments or a cash refund; and
as an expense, unless another Standard requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an
asset.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised
as an expense as the employees render services that
increase their entitlement or, in the case of nonaccumulating absences, when the absence occurs. Brand
South Africa measures the expected cost of accumulating
compensated absences as the additional amount that the
entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement
that has accumulated at the reporting date.
The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive
and performance related payments when Brand South
Africa has a present legal or constructive obligation to
make such payments as a result of past events and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
A present obligation exists when Brand South Africa has
no realistic alternative but to make the payments.
Post-employment benefits
Post-employment benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) which are payable after the
completion of employment.
Post-employment benefit plans are formal or informal
arrangements under which Brand South Africa provides
post employment benefits for one or more employees.

Accounting Policies - Brand South Africa Trust Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans
Defined contribution plans are post-employment
benefit plans under which Brand South Africa pays fixed
contributions into a Sanlam umbrella fund and will
have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service
in the current and prior periods.
When an employee has rendered service to Brand
South Africa during a reporting period, Brand South
Africa recognises the contribution payable to a defined
contribution plan in exchange for that service:
•

•

as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any
contribution already paid. If the contribution already
paid exceeds the contribution due for service before
the reporting date, an entity recognise that excess
as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the
prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in
future payments or a cash refund; and
as an expense, unless another Standard requires or
permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost
of an asset.

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do
not fall due wholly within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period in which the employees render the
related service, they are discounted. The rate used to
discount reflects the time value of money. The currency
and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect
the time value of money is consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the obligation.
1.11 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
•

Brand South Africa has a present obligation as a result
of a past event;

•

•

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits or service potential will be
required to settle the obligation; and
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date.
Where the effect of time value of money is material,
the amount of a provision is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation.
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement is recognised when, and only
when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received if Brand South Africa settles the obligation. The
reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the
amount of the provision.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions
are reversed if it is no longer probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required, to settle the obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a
provision increases in each period to reflect the passage
of time. This increase is recognised as an interest expense.
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the
provision was originally recognised.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus
(deficit).
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present
obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is
recognised and measured as a provision.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not
recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 31.
1.12 Commitments
Items are classified as commitments when an entity has
committed itself to future transactions that will normally
result in the outflow of cash.
Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised
contractual commitments.
Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to
achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note
to the financial statements, if both the following criteria
are met:
•

Contracts should be non-cancellable or only
cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts
for computer or building maintenance services); and

•

Contracts should relate to something other than the
routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore
salary commitments relating to employment
contracts or social security benefit commitments are
excluded.

5

1.13 Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or
service potential during the reporting period when those
inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than
increases relating to contributions from owners.
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Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume
rebates.
1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or
service potential received and receivable by Brand
South Africa, which represents an increase in net assets,
other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify
that the future economic benefits or service potential
embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the
recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service
potential must be returned to the transferor.

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction,Brand
South Africa recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue
equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its fair
value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required
to recognise a liability. Where a liability is required to be
recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the
amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting
date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any,
recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently
reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition
is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is
recognised as revenue.
1.15 Finance income
Finance income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.
1.16 Translation of foreign currencies

Control of an asset arise when Brand South Africa can
use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its
objectives and can exclude or otherwise regulate the
access of others to that benefit.
Recognition
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction
recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to
the extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the
same inflow.
Brand South Africa satisfies a present obligation
recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources
from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it
reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and
recognises an amount of revenue equal to that reduction.
Measurement
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured
at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by
Brand South Africa.
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Foreign currency transactions
A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial
recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the spot exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.
At each reporting date:
• foreign currency monetary items are translated using
the closing rate;
• non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction;
and
• non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items or on translating monetary items at
rates different from those at which they were translated
on initial recognition during the period or in previous
annual financial statements are recognised in surplus or
deficit in the period in which they arise.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
directly in net assets, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised directly in net assets. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
surplus or deficit , any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.
Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency
are recorded in Rands by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the Rand
and the foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.
1.17 Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been
reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the
current year.
1.18 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was
made in vain and could have been avoided had
reasonable care been exercised.
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Financial Performance in the year that the expenditure
was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance
with the nature of the expense, and where recovered, it is
subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement
of Financial Performance.
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1.19 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA
is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure,
incurred in contravention of or that is not in accordance
with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including:
(a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of
1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement
procedures in that provincial government.
National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which
was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA
requires the following (effective from 1 December 2018):

attributed to a person, a debt account must be created
if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must
thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person
concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer
or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt
impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the
financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must
also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure
has not been condoned and no person is liable in law,
the expenditure related thereto must remain against the
relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as
such in the note to the financial statements and updated
accordingly in the irregular expenditure register.

Close members of the family of a person are considered
to be those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that management in their
dealings with Brand South Africa.
Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length
or not in the ordinary course of the business are disclosed.
1.22 Events after reporting date
Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable
and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date
and the date when the financial statements are authorised
for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

1.20 Budget information
•

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified
during the current financial and which was condoned
before year end and/or before finalisation of the financial
statements must also be recorded appropriately in the
irregular expenditure register. In such an instance, no
further action is also required with the exception of
updating the note to the financial statements.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified
during the current financial year and for which
condonement is being awaited at year end must be
recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further
action is required with the exception of updating the
note to the financial statements.

Brand South Africa is typically subject to budgetary limits
in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations
(or equivalent), which is given effect through authorising
legislation, appropriation or similar.
General purpose financial reporting by Brand South Africa
shall provide information on whether resources were
obtained and used in accordance with the legally adopted
budget.
The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis
and presented by functional classification linked to
performance outcome objectives.
Comparative information is not required.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous
financial year and is only condoned in the following financial
year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial
statements must be updated with the amount condoned.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified
during the current financial year and which was not
condoned by the National Treasury or the relevant authority
must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure
register. If liability for the irregular expenditure can be

1.21 Related parties

•

those that provide evidence of conditions that existed
at the reporting date (adjusting events after the
reporting date); and
those that are indicative of conditions that arose after
the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the
reporting date).

Brand South Africa will adjust the amount recognised in
the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after
the reporting date once the event occurred.
Brand South Africa will disclose the nature of the event
and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that
such estimate cannot be made in respect of all material
non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the financial statements.

5

Management are those persons responsible for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of Brand
South Africa, including those charged with the
governance of Brand South Africa in accordance with
legislation, in instances where they are required to
perform such functions.
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2. BUDGET DIFFERENCES

3. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Differences between budget and actual amounts basis of
preparation and presentation

GRAP 17 (as amended 2016): Property, Plant and
Equipment

The budget and the accounting bases differ. The annual
financial statements for Brand South Africa are prepared
on the accrual basis using a classification based on
the nature of expenses in the statement of financial
performance. The annual financial statements are for the
fiscal period from 01-Apr-18 to 31-Mar-19.

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Property,
Plant and Equipment resulted from editorial changes
to the original text and inconsistencies in measurement
requirements in GRAP 23 and other asset-related
Standards of GRAP in relation to the treatment of
transaction costs. Other changes resulted from changes
made to IPSAS 17 on Property, Plant and Equipment
(IPSAS 17) as a result of the IPSASB’s Improvements to
IPSASs 2014 issued in January 2015 and Improvements to
IPSASs 2015 issued in March 2016.

The annual financial statements differ from the budget,
which is approved on the cash basis.
The amounts in the annual financial statements were
recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and
reclassified by functional classification to be on the same
basis as the final approved budget.
A reconciliation between the actual amounts on a
comparable basis as presented in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actual
amounts in the statement of financial performance for
the period ended 31 March 2019 is presented in the face
of the budget statement. There is a basis difference: the
budget is prepared on the cash basis and the financial
statements on the accrual basis.
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The most significant changes to the Standard are:
•

General improvements: To clarify the treatment of
transaction costs and other costs incurred on assets
acquired in non-exchange transactions to be in line
with the principle in GRAP 23 (paragraph .12); and To
clarify the measurement principle when assets may
be acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset
or assets, or a combination of monetary and nonmonetary assets.

•

IPSASB amendments: To clarify the revaluation
methodology of the carrying amount and
accumulated depreciation when an item of
property, plant, and equipment is revalued; To
clarify acceptable methods of depreciating assets;
To align terminology in GRAP 17 with that in IPSAS
17. The term “specialist military equipment” in IPSAS
17 was replaced with the term “weapon systems”
and provides a description of what it comprises
in accordance with Government Finance Statistics
terminology; and To define a bearer plant and
include bearer plants within the scope of GRAP 17,
while the produce growing on bearer plants will
remain within the scope of GRAP 27.

The effective date of the amendment is for years
beginning on or after 1 April, 2018.
The entity has adopted the amendment for the first time
in the 2018/2019 annual financial statements.
The impact of the amendment is not material.
GRAP 21 (as amended 2016): Impairment of non-cashgenerating assets Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on
Impairment of Non-cash Generating Assets resulted from
changes made to IPSAS 21 on Impairment of Non-CashGenerating Assets (IPSAS 21) as a result of the IPSASB’s
Impairment of Revalued Assets issued in March 2016.
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The most significant changes to the Standard are:
•

IPSASB amendments: To update the Basis of conclusions and Comparison with IPSASs to reflect the IPSASB’s recent decision on the impairment of revalued assets.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 1 April, 2018.
The entity has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2018/2019 annual financial statements.
The impact of the amendment is not material.
3.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective
Brand South Africa has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for Brand South Africa’s accounting periods beginning on or
after 01 April 2019 or later periods:
Standard/ Interpretation:

Effective date: Years
beginning on or after

Expected impact:

GRAP 35: Consolidated Financial Statements

1 April 2019

Not expected to impact results but may result in additional disclosure

GRAP 37: Joint Arrangements

1 April 2019

Unlikely there will be a material impact

Guideline: Accounting for Arrangements Undertaken i.t.o the National Housing Programme 1 April 2019

Unlikely there will be a material impact

GRAP 6 (as revised 2010): Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

1 April 2019

Unlikely there will be a material impact

GRAP 8 (as revised 2010): Interests in Joint Ventures

1 April 2019

Unlikely there will be a material impact

GRAP 18 (as amended 2016): Segment Reporting

1 April 2019

Lease term

GRAP 20: Related parties

1 April 2019

Impact is currently being assessed

GRAP 107: Mergers

1 April 2019

Unlikely there will be a material impact

GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables

1 April 2019

Unlikely there will be a material impact
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost /
Valuation
R

2019

2018

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment
R

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment
R

Carrying
value
R

Cost /
Valuation
R

Carrying
value
R

Leasehold property

1,443,991

(940,394)

503,597

1,443,991

(724,567)

719,424

Furniture and fixtures

2,365,176

(1,381,908)

983,268

2,352,139

(1,106,861)

1,245,278

Motor vehicles

1,055,976

(576,433)

479,543

1,055,976

(365,238)

690,738

Office equipment

2,708,718

(1,549,880)

1,158,838

2,879,850

(1,387,371)

1,492,479

IT equipment

4,859,409

(2,958,592)

1,900,817

4,246,587

(2,249,493)

1,997,094

458,168

(458,168)

-

458,168

(458,168)

-

12,891,438

(7,865,375)

5,026,063

12,436,711

(6,291,698)

6,145,013

Finance lease office equipment
Total
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019

Opening balance
Leasehold property
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
Office equipment

106

Additions

Scrapped

Depreciation

Total

719,452

-

-

(215,855)

503,597

1,245,249

19,427

-

(281,408)

983,268

-

(211,195)

479,543

(413,619)

1,158,838

690,738

-

1,492,478

112,457

(32,478)

IT equipment

1,997,094

1,058,762

(83,489)

(1,094,020)

1,900,817

Total

6,145,011

1,190,646

(115,967)

(2,216,097)

5,026,063
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2018

Opening balance
Leasehold property
Furniture and fixtures

Additions

Disposals

779,074

146,767

Transfers
-

Total

(206,389)

719,452
1,245,249

1,033,245

335,097

56,139

(153,256)

Motor vehicles

901,933

-

-

-

(211,195)

690,738

Office equipment

609,654

1,188,329

-

-

(305,505)

1,492,478

1,263,605

1,551,968

-

(773,223)

1,997,094

64,872

-

(8,733)

-

4,652,383

3,222,161

(1,658,301)

6,145,011

-

25,976

IT equipment
Finance lease office equipment
Total

(25,976)

Depreciation
-

(45,256)
-

(56,139)

(71,232)

-

5. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS
Impairments
Property, plant and equipment

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost /
Valuation
Computer software
ERP Development - WIP
Total

14,873,776
14,873,776

2019

2018

Accumulated
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment

Accumulated
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying
value

(7,282,867)
(7,282,867)

Cost /
Valuation

7,590,909

9,597,796

-

5,158,016

7,590,909

14,755,812

5
Carrying
value

(3,374,145)
(3,374,145)

6,223,651
5,158,016
11,381,667
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6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2019

Opening balance
Computer software

Additions

6,223,651

ERP Development - WIP
Total

Transfers

117,964

Amortisation

5,158,016

5,158,016

-

(5,158,016)

11,381,667

117,964

-

Total

(3,908,722)

7,590,909

(3,908,722)

7,590,909

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018

Opening balance
Computer software

Additions

1,041,676

Transfers

Amortisation

2,217,102

5,831,984

ERP Development - WIP

5,831,984

5,158,016

(5,831,984)

Total

6,873,660

7,375,118

-

Total

(2,867,111)
(2,867,111)

6,223,651
5,158,016
11,381,667

7. HERITAGE ASSETS
2019
Cost /
Valuation
Art Collections

170,556

2018

Accumulated
impairment
losses

Carrying
value
-

170,556

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
impairment
losses

170,556

Carrying
value
-

170,556

Reconciliation of heritage assets - March 2019

Opening balance
Art Collections

Total

170,556

170,556

Reconciliation of heritage assets - March 2018

Opening balance
Art Collections
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170,556

Total
170,556
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7. HERITAGE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Heritage assets
The heritage assets comprise of works of art such as collage mirrors, beaded mirrors, beaded sable, sculptures, paintings and jewelled bowls. These items were classified as heritage assets
meet the definition criteria of GRAP 103. The cost of heritage assets is based on purchase price of the asset measured on the cost model.

8. DEPOSITS

2019
R

2018
R

At amortised cost
Deposits paid on leased property - opening balance

966,575

1,113,811

Terms and conditions
Exchange gains/losses on deposit denominated in foreign currencies

-

1,836

Terms and conditions
Interest earned

29,399

74,828

Terms and conditions
Deposit receivable

-

(113,370)

Terms and conditions
995,974
Impairments

-

1,077,105
(110,530)

995,974

966,575

995,974

966,575

Non-current assets
At amortised cost
Financial assets pledged as collateral

5

Collateral
Carrying value of financial assets pledged as collateral for liabilities or contingent liabilities

995,974

966,575

Details of the reclassification is as follows:* Head office situated at 103 Central Street, Houghton for an additional 5 year lease from 1 August 2016 ending 31 July 2021.
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9. OPERATING LEASE ASSET (ACCRUAL)
Current assets
Current liabilities

2019
R

2018
R
7,985

-

(1,029,660)

(785,047)

(1,021,675)

(785,047)

Operating lease liabilities arise from straight - lining of payments under operating leases.

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Defined contribution plan
It is the policy of Brand South Africa to provide retirement benefits to all its permanent employees. Brand South Africa operates a defined
contribution provident fund, which is subject to the Pensions Fund Act. The Fund is administered by Sanlam as an Umbrella Fund because of its
size. Under the current arrangements both the employee and employer contributes 7.5% of retirement funding with the employer funding the
operating costs over and above the retirement contributions.
Brand South Africa is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits.
The amount recognised as an expense for defined contribution plans
Total number of employees participating in the plan

3,782,347

3,473,865

49

52

640,180

879,747

11. PREPAYMENTS
Computer software
Insurance
Subscriptions
Prepayments relates to goods and/or services that have been paid for in advance, as per contract terms.
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-

74,297

189,772

-

829,952

954,044
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12. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

2019
R

Trade receivables

2018
R

1,406,418

955,935

Income accrued

132,238

86,915

Staff debt

271,959

73,919

Other receivables

(100,720)

-

1,709,895

1,116,769

1,406,418

1,110,935

Trade receivables past due
Trade receivables which are less than three months overdue are not considered for impairment. Trade receivables mainly comprise of partnerships
contributions from Multichoice, Old Mutual and dti. The debt owed by SABC which was previously impaired has been written off in thze current
financial year. The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:
Total carrying amounts of trade receivables
Total carrying amounts of trade receivables
Less: Provision for impairment

1,406,418

Ageing receivables - March 2019
Trade receivables
Ageing receivables - March 2018
Trade receivables

Current

30 days

1,406,418

Current

60 days
-

30 days
-

> 90 days
-

60 days
-

955,935

(155,000)
955,935

Total
-

> 90 days

1,406,418

Total
-

955,935

155,000

155,000

Provision for impairment

155,000

155,000

Amounts written off as irrecoverable

(20,000)

Receivables impaired

5

The ageing of the trade receivables impaired is as follows:
Over six months
Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade receivables

135,000

155,000
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12. RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

2019
R

2018
R

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of other receivables
Opening balance

336,578

175,644

Reversal of impairment

(165,644)

(175,644)

Provision for impairment

-

336,578

170,934

336,578

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables has been included in the operating expenses note. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of receivables above. Brand South Africa does not hold any collateral as security.

13. DEBT IMPAIRMENT
Debt impairment

544

426,464

Bank balances

26,656,660

28,202,397

Cash on hand

9,865

5,865

26,666,525

28,208,262

The decrease in debt impairment is attributable to the debt written off for SABC in the current financial year.

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand
The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired. The ratings are assigned by Moody’s Investor Services and Standard &
Poor’s Rating Services:
Credit rating
Nedbank - Baa3
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26,656,660

28,202,397
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15. PROVISIONS
Reconciliation of provisions - March 2019

Opening balance
Leave provision

1,901,642

Additions
3,433,986

Utilised during
the year

Reversed during
the year

(2,011,983)

Total
-

3,323,645

Bonus provision

6,409,068

6,886,687

(5,417,496)

(991,572)

6,886,687

Total

8,310,710

10,320,673

(7,429,479)

(991,572)

10,210,332

Reconciliation of provisions - March 2018

Opening balance

Additions

Utilised during
the year

Reversed during
the year

Total

Leave provision

1,707,465

3,636,808

(3,442,631)

Bonus provision

6,217,165

6,409,068

(5,385,711)

(831,454)

-

1,901,642
6,409,068

Total

7,924,630

10,045,876

(8,828,342)

(831,454)

8,310,710

The leave provision relates to employees’ accumulated leave at year end. The provision is based on the assumption that employees will commute leave on demand and on resignation.
The bonus provision relates to Brand South Africa’s best estimate for performance related bonus payment at year end. The performance bonuses have been determined using Brand South Africa’s
performance bonus policy.

16. PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Trade payables
Salary related payables
Accrued operating expenses
Sundry creditors
Accrued capex expenses
Total

16,703,442

3,710,448

646,914

76,481

4,652,941

2,056,271

30,624

16,525

2,345,912

3,867,246

24,379,833

9,726,971
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16. PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

2019
R

2018
R

Ageing of trade payables
Current

13,753,522

2,758,676

30 days

-

415,803

13,753,522

3,710,448

The 30 day from prior year ageing relates to suppliers whose tax affairs were not in order and who are liaising with SARS to remedy the matter.

Amount

Trade payables include the following suppliers with significant account balance:
Brand Fusion (Pty) Ltd

4,217,206

Ebony and Ivory Advertising Marketing Promotions (Pty) Ltd

5,631,822

FTI Consulting South Africa (Pty) Ltd

732,951
10,581,979

Amount

Accrued operating expenses include the following suppliers with significant account balance:
FTI

1,009,290

Department of labour-WCF

1,297,704
2,306,994

Amount

Accrued capex expenses include the following suppliers:
Vodacom Cellphone

317,466

Technobrain-ERP

2,028,446
2,345,912

17. TOTAL REVENUE
Other income
Partnership income - related parties
Interest received - investment
Government grant
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187,532

398,728

12,167,117

5,529,737

1,695,839

1,578,025

200,430,000

194,300,000

214,480,488

201,806,490
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17. TOTAL REVENUE (CONTINUED)

2019
R

2018
R

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are as follows:
Other income
Partnership income - related parties
Interest received - investment

187,532

398,728

12,167,117

5,529,737

1,695,839

1,578,025

14,050,488

7,506,490

200,430,000

194,300,000

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as follows:
Government grants
Government grants

Partnership income received from dti increased significantly from the previous year due to additional allocation of R8.2 million received from dti to co-host the BRICS Summit.

18. OTHER INCOME
Bursary recoupment
Skills levy reimbursement
Proceeds on insurance claim
Royalties-Brand SA image library
WEF Davos deposit refund
MICT Grant

-

194,065

-

19,904

31,100

35,424

364

9,377

-

139,958

156,068

-

187,532

398,728

MICT grant received in the current financial year is for the seven interns recruited in march 2019. The grant is ring fenced to pay for their stipend. The staff leave recoupment raised refers to an exemployee who had exhausted their sick leave and is still owing the entity.

5

19. PARTNERSHIP INCOME
SAPBA Partnership income-dti

2,916,775

4,779,737

WEF Davos partnership income-Multichoice/Old Mutual

1,000,000

750,000

BRICS Partnership income-dti

8,250,342

-

12,167,117

5,529,737

Partnership income relates to the collaboration with a related party, the DTI in co-hosting the annual South African Premier Awards and BRICS Summit.
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20. REVENUE

2019
R

2018
R

Operating grants
Government grant

200,430,000

194,300,000

1,666,440

1,503,197

21. FINANCE INCOME
Interest revenue
Cash and bank deposits
Financial instruments held at amortised cost

29,399

74,828

1,695,839

1,578,025

The total interest income earned by Brand South Africa is from both current and call accounts at an average interest rate of 5.25% per annum (March 2018: 5.25%) as well as interest earned from
financial instruments carried at amortised cost whose average interest is 3% (2018: 10.5%) as disclosed in note 5. Brand South Africa invest its money Nedbank which has a Baa3 rating.

22. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS

2019
R

2018
R

Basic (i)

48,642,909

42,778,722

Bonus

5,895,114

5,666,998

600,863

563,061

98,078

93,826

Medical aid - company contributions
UIF
SDL

522,068

471,566

3,782,348

3,473,865

20,354

88,664

Acting allowances (iv)

745,389

243,733

Travel allowance (v)

516,000

414,000

Defined contribution plans (ii)
Overtime payments (iii)

Cost of living allowance -COLA (vi)

5,581,474

5,977,645

66,404,597

59,772,080

(i) The basic salaries increased due to the increase in cost of living adjustments and notch increase furthermore salaries were paid during the year for the acting CEO and the current CEO.
(ii) The defined contribution plan increased due to the increase in salaries as well increase in pension fund group benefit rates contributions.
(iii) Overtime allowance significantly reduced due to the reduction in projects for repairs and maintenance.
(iii) Acting allowance significantly increased due to the suspensions of three executives positions, CMO, CFO and CEO.
(iv) Cost of living allowance reduced to vacancy of the country manager in china office. The cost of living allowance is paid to the country managers in the UK, China and USA as part of their
employment contract on a monthly basis.
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22. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS (CONTINUED)
Remuneration of Chief Financial Officer (Resigned 31 August 2017) - A Puoane
Annual Remuneration

-

948,065

Performance Bonuses

-

184,314

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

-

27,155

Cellphone allowance

-

16,950

Reimbursive expenses

-

5,350

-

1,181,834

2019
R

2018
R

Remuneration of Acting Chief Executive Officer - Thembi Kunene-Msimang (13 Aug 2018 - 31 March 2019)
Remuneration
Contributions to UIF
Reimbursive expenses

2,387,683

-

24,769

-

1,744

-

2,414,196

-

Due to the suspension of the CEO, the board member Ms Thembi Kunene-Msimang was appointed as the acting CEO with effect from 13 August 2018 until 08 April 2019.
Remuneration of Director: Governance, Legal & Secretariat - SS Nyoni
Annual Remuneration
Cell Allowance
Performance Bonuses
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds
Reimbursive expenses

1,626,927

1,582,200

-

27,119

50,992

280,263

197,389

139,140

754

2,023

1,876,062

2,030,745
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22. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS (CONTINUED)
Remuneration of Director: Governance, Legal & Secretariat - SS Nyoni
Annual Remuneration
Cell Allowance
Performance Bonuses
Contributions to UIF
Reimbursive expenses

3,660,058

3,532,122

-

20,340

-

572,666

38,385

1,785

-

18,643

3,698,443

4,145,556

252,233

-

Remuneration of Acting Director of Corporate Services - T Gaokgorwe (01 June 2018 - 30 October 2018)
Acting allowance

Due to the resignation of the Director of Corporate Services, Mr Tebogo Gaokgorwe was appointed as the acting Director of Corporate Services with effect from 1 June 2018 until 30 October 2018.
Remuneration of Acting Chief Financial Officer - K Seripe (7 March 2019 to 31 March 2019)
Acting Allowance

28,029

243,733

1,816,524

2,060,539

193,050

156,286

4,751

57,564

2,014,325

2,274,389

Due to the suspension of the CFO, Mr Kgomotso Seripe was appointed as the acting CFO with effect from 07 March 2019 to date.
Remuneration of Chief Marketing Officer - L Magapatona-Sangaret (Terminated employment 7 March 2019)
Remuneration
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds
Reimbursive expenses

Ms Linda Magapatona-Sangaret worked for a period of 10 months during the current financial year. The employment contract was dismissed on 7 March 2019.
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22. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS (CONTINUED)

2019
R

2018
R

Remuneration of Director: Corporate Services - J Tshipa (Resigned 31 May 2018)
Annual Remuneration

283,290

1,716,904

Leave paid out

106,868

-

Performance Bonuses
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds
Reimbursive expenses
Cell Allowance

-

311,803

10,354

40,752

1,305

13,290

-

20,339

401,817

2,103,088

399,660

-

55,833

-

1,701

-

457,194

-

75,035

-

Remuneration of Director: Corporate Services - K Kissoonduth commenced 1 January 2019
Annual Remuneration
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds
Reimbursive expenses
Remuneration of Acting Chief Marketing Officer - S Ntombela (11 February 2019 to date)
Acting Allowance

Due to the suspension of the Chief Marketing officer, Ms Sithembile Ntombela was appointed as the acting Chief Marketing Officer with effect from 11 February 2019 to date.
Remuneration of Chief Financial Officer - Nadine Thomas commenced 02 January 2018 and suspended (7 March 2019 to date)
Annual Remuneration

1,494,370

373,593

Acting Allowance

418,119

-

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds

163,866

28,466

318

-

2,076,673

402,059

-

1,852

Reimbursive expenses

5

The CFO is currently on suspension with fully pay from 7 March 2019 to date.

23. FINANCE COSTS
Interest expense
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24. GENERAL EXPENSES
Advertising

2018
R
351,624

4,156

3,120,442

2,020,759

127,694

154,676

Computer expenses

2,818,973

2,527,969

Consulting and professional fees - Other

1,568,177

1,471,366

101,842

142,363

Auditors remuneration (i)
Bank charges

Consumables
Courier & Delivery expenses

2,502

45,366

2,383,865

154,343

Insurance

212,019

127,590

Conferences and Seminars

152,260

-

Consulting and professional fees -Legal fees (ii)

Motor vehicle expenses

48,788

60,717

Placement fees (iii)

821,343

1,149,373

Printing and stationery

171,354

370,516

Security

6,647

79,463

167,218

131,026

Subscriptions and membership fees (iv)

2,571,813

3,576,524

Telephone and internet (v)

4,005,215

1,351,952

568,908

203,227

Travel and subsistence-domestic

3,305,446

3,185,069

Travel and subsistence- overseas (vi)

2,812,117

5,293,232

Water and electricity

1,175,369

971,713

Other operating expenses (vii)

1,481,853

128,190

Staff Wellness expenses

Staff training and development

Removal and storage costs
Audit and risk committee remuneration
Board remuneration (viii)
Venue expenses

120

2019
R

22,094

17,133

225,195

237,752

1,055,942

1,265,864

1,509,787

813,533

30,788,487

25,483,872

(i) Increase in auditors remuneration is mainly due to the increase in scope of external audit in tenders and internal audit increased the scope as well to quality assure the tenders before being awarded.
(ii) Legal fees significantly increase because of the increase in the number of cases being investigated and litigious matters.
(iii) A decrease in placement fees is due to the moratorium placed on all existing vacant posts.
(iv) A decrease in membership fees is due to the decrease in the number of subscriptions i.e City Brand Index and decrease in the WEF Davos membership fee.
(v) An increase in telephone and internet costs is due to the increase in the number of users accessing APN, broad band and outbundle rates being charged for the data not capped.
(vi) A significant decrease in travel and subsistence is attributable to international strategic platforms i.e. Brics Summit, ITU which usually outside hosted in overseas were held in South Africa in the
currrent financial year.
(vii) Other operating expense significant increase is mainly due to the interest and penalties charged for late registration of Compensation Fund.
(viii) The Board remuneration was paid for the first time in the prior financial year resulting in back dated payments in the previous year
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25. BRAND, COMMUNICATION AND REPUTATION COSTS
Research fees (i)
Branding and collateral (ii)

2019
R

2018
R

7,495,717

7,271,452

5,897,199

2,913,201

30,051,604

45,720,462

Agency - Digital management (iv)

2,238,407

10,596,721

Agency - Public Relations (v)

6,205,944

4,260,154

Agency - Media Monitoring

1,290,689

1,335,306

Media buy (iii)

Activation fees - Domestic and International activities (vi)

71,335,576

43,426,736

124,515,136

115,524,032

(i) Research fees decrease is due to subscription for Nation Brand Index and city brand index not being secured in the current financial year.
(ii) Branding and Collateral mainly increased because of the construction of branded meeting rooms in Wef Davos, stands for Mining Indaba, BRICS Summit, ITU and replacement of collateral for
all the China, USA and global markets.
(iii) An decrease in the media buy is due to the expensing of prior year prepayment and international media partnership was only secured for half of the financial year.
(iv) A significant decrease in the digital management agency fee is due to the non-renewal of the digital management contract from February 2018 to date.
(v) A decrease in public relations is due to the cancellation of the Public Relations (PR) agency contract with the PR agency in January 2019.
(vi) An increase in activation costs is due to additional activations undertaken in the current financial year .i.e. Brics Summit, ITU, UNGA

26. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
External audit
Internal audit

1,817,770

1,261,631

1,302,672

759,128

3,120,442

2,020,759

5

27. OPERATING DEFICIT
Operating deficit (surplus) for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
Operating deficit

18,139,493

9,031,849

3,814,352

3,764,771

-

170,336

349,594

477,122

Operating lease charges
Premises
•

Contractual amounts-Office rental JHB

•

Contractual amounts-Office rental CHN - 170,336 Equipment

•

Contractual amounts

4,163,946
4,412,229
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27. OPERATING DEFICIT (CONTINUED)

2019
R

2018
R

(Gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment

-

4,058

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

-

25,976

458,426

224,366

Loss on exchange differences
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation on intangible assets
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Employee costs

94,388

44,876

3,908,722

2,867,111

2,215,200

1,658,301

66,404,597

59,772,080

70,535

401,238

28. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
Repairs and maintenance
There were no major repairs carried out in the Houghton offices during the current year under review.

29. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Deficit for the year
Depreciation and amortisation
Gain on disposal of assets
Loss on disposal of assets
Forex differences

(18,139,493)

(9,031,849)

6,123,922

4,525,412

94,388
458,426

(4,058)
44,876
(1,674)

Finance costs - Finance leases

-

1,852

Impairment of assets

-

25,976

Movement in deposits
Impairment of financial assets

(29,399)

36,706

544

110,530

236,628

479,636

1,899,622

386,080

Prepayments

124,092

17,826,042

Receivables from exchange transactions

(593,670)

Movements in lease assets and accruals
Movements in provisions
Changes in working capital:

Payables from exchange transactions
Other non-cash items

14,167,210
(9,359)
4,332,911
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30. COMMITMENTS

2019
R

2018
R

Authorised and approved expenditure
Already approved and contracted for
Travel

331,811

-

Activation

729,360

-

6,107

-

Advert

1,009

-

Bursary

75,740

-

ERP

112,424

-

Professional Fees

514,728

-

-

4,787,697

66,553

-

553

-

Public relations

29,000

1,111,978

Printing

47,610

-

Storage

2,084

-

1,800

-

203,051

-

License

International investor perception
Recruitment
Stationery

Subscription fees
Telephone
Computer expense

14,994

-

2,136,824

5,899,675

2,136,824

5,899,675

Total commitments
Already approved and contracted for

5

Operating leases - as lessee (expense)
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by Brand South Africa for its office space located at 103 Central Street Houghton.The lease for the building for the Houghton office was
renewed for a further five years on the 01 August 2016 to 31 August 2021.
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30. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

2019
R

2018
R

Minimum lease payments due-Rental of the building

3,991,005

- within one year

5,841,301

9,832,307

- in second to fifth year inclusive

9,832,306

13,493,780

- within one year

87,852

-

- in second to fifth year inclusive

87,852

-

175,704

-

3,661,473

Minimum lease payments due-Rental of PABX

Minimum lease payments due-Rental of Printing Machine
- within one year

-

-

129,499

-

129,499

-

Operating lease payments for office equipment represent rentals payable by Brand South Africa for leasing PABX telephone lines for a period of three years from 1 July 2018 until 30 June 2021 and
two printing machines for a period of two years commencing 1 April 2018 until 31 March 2020.

31. CONTINGENCIES
The entity terminated a contract with the PR agency during the current financial year. Brand South Africa’s lawyers and management consider the prospects of success of the actions taken against
Brand South Africa to be remote. The case is expected to be resolved within the next financial year. The estimate of the financial impact for termination of contract is R8,000,000.
There are currently four pending legal proceedings which are made against the entity by one current and three ex-employees and involve financial exposure. Brand South Africa’s lawyers and
management consider the prospects of success of the actions taken against Brand South Africa to be remote. The cases are expected to be resolved within the next financial year. The estimate of
the financial impact for all cases is estimated impact for all cases is R8,915,080.

124

Brand South Africa | Annual Report 2018/19

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements - Brand South Africa Trust Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
32. RELATED PARTIES

2019
R

2018
R

Related party
Department of Communications

Executive Authority

South African Broadcasting Corporation

Entity controlled by a related party

The Government Printing Works

Entity controlled by a related party

National Treasury

Strategic Partner on trade related activities

Proudly South African

Strategic Partner on trade related activities

Department of Trade and Industry

Strategic Partner on trade related activities

CSIR

Strategic Partner on trade related activities

Department of International Relations

Strategic Partner on trade related activities

Members of key management

Executive Directors (refer to note 20)

Transactions with all the related parties are at arms length. The amounts outstanding are unsecured, interest free and repayable within 30 days
Related parties
Amounts included in Account Payable regarding related parties
Department of International Relations

81,731

-

135,000

135,000

Amounts included in Trade receivable regarding related parties
National Treasury
SABC

20,000

20,000

329,137

955,935

145,644

165,644

SABC

165,644

165,644

National Treasury

135,000

-

2,270

4,156

Department of Trade and Industry

5

Amounts included in other receivables
SABC
Provision for doubtful debts related to outstanding balances with related parties

Payment to related parties
The Government Printing Works
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32. RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

2019
R

2018
R

Transfer Payments
Department of Communications

200,430,000

194,300,000

11,167,117

4,779,673

Luyanda Mangquku

99,750

114,900

Thuli Mashanda

90,800

122,852

190,550

237,752

Related party transactions
Amount included in the Partnership income regarding related parties
Department of Trade and Industry

33. REMUNERATION OF INDEPENDENT ARCO MEMBERS
The decrease of ARCO fees is as a result of the decrease in number of meetings attended in the current financial year.
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34. REMUNERATION OF BOARD MEMBERS
Board members remuneration were first paid in October 2017 including the fees emanating from the prior financial year. The meetings paid for included board meetings and other meetings attended
on behalf of Brand South Africa. The previous Minister of Finance, Mr Gigaba, indicated in a letter dated 14 September 2017 that Brand South Africa board members would be paid fees as per the
National Treasury circular relating to committee fees. This was the first approval for such remuneration.
Non-Executive

Members Fees

Members Fees

2019
Khanyisile Kweyama (Chairperson)
Babalwa Ngonyama
Mpho Makwana
Given Sibiya

125,868

176,689

61,963

36,937

46,854

102,594

199,992

162,090

Stavros Nicolaou

74,805

87,216

Janine Hills

93,233

103,112

Kuseni Dlamini

41,636

58,252

Lehlohonolo Bonoko

81,515

74,890

Geoff Rothschild

76,250

75,726

Muditambi Ravele

78,150

88,729

-

74,536

Mzimkulu Malunga

90,540

90,826

Rashid Lombard

50,905

75,490

Thembi Kunene-Msimang (Acting CEO 13 August 2018- 07 April 2019)

34,231

58,777

1,055,942

1,265,864

Arthur Mafokate (Resigned 24 April 2018)

35. RISK MANAGEMENT

5

Financial risk management
Brand South Africa’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. Brand South Africa’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on Brand South Africa’s financial
performance. Risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the accounting authority. Brand South Africa identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close
co-operation with Brand South Africa’s operating units. The accounting authority provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.
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35. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk
Brand South Africa’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. Brand South Africa manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments.
Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, and trade debtors. Brand South Africa only deposits cash in a major bank with high quality credit standing.
Trade receivables are concentrated around a few major government departments. These are assessed to be high quality as they usually pay up their accounts within thirty days of invoicing.
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Financial instrument

2019
R

2018
R

Nedbank call account

10,466,000

26,466,000

Nedbank current account

16,190,660

1,736,397

1,709,895

1,116,769

Receivables from exchange transactions
Market risk
Interest rate risk

Brand South Africa’s income and operating cash flows are largely independent of changes in market interest rates even though it generates investment revenue from excess cash deposited in the
call account.
Foreign exchange risk
Brand South Africa operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar, Chinese Yuan Renminbi (CNY),
Swiss Franc (CHF) and the UK pound. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities, and net investments in foreign operations.
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35. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

2019
R

2018
R

Foreign currency exposure at Statement of Financial Position date
Liabilities
Current, USD 159050 (2018: USD 50250)
Current, GBP 11270 (2018: 6000)

2,321,621

592,225

214,101

99,057

Current, CHF (2018: 9658)

-

119,211

Current, CNY (2018: 267663)

-

502,217

USD

14.5968

11.78545

GBP

18.9977

16.50953

CHF

14.66276

12.342983

CNY

2.17496

1.876305

EUR

16.3878

13.9293

Exchange rates used for conversion of foreign items were:

Brand South Africa reviews its foreign currency exposure, including commitments on an ongoing basis.

36. GOING CONCERN
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and
settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
Brand South Africa is expected to continue operating as a going concern. There are no indications from the Executive Authority that the approved grant allocation for the financial year 2019/2020
will be stopped.

5
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37. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE DETAILS
Opening balance
Cancellation of travel tender
Penalties for late registration of Compensation Fund
Interest charged on late payment to Sanlam pension fund
Prepayment of the talent module system not implemented
Unauthorised leave taken by an employee

2019
R

2018
R
250

-

-

250

1,297,704

-

2,832

-

148,675

-

49,594

-

1,499,055

250

(i) The increase in fruitless and wasteful expenditure refers to the interest and penalties charged for late registration to the Compensation Fund, prepayment of talent module system in year
2013/14 which was not implemented, late payment to Sanlam pension fund and unauthorised leave taken by an employee

38. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
Opening balance

10,546,417

-

Irregular expenditure incurred in the current year

13,537,928

5,510,146

1,368,493

5,196,170

Irregular expenditure incurred in the prior year identified in the current year
Less: Amounts condoned

25,452,838

(159,899)
10,546,417

The irregular expenditure incurred in the current financial year relates to the irregular appointment of the Public Relations agency, award to a connected person, awards without SBD4 forms
and the irregular appointment of the company responsible for trademark registration. The matter is still under investigation. Requests have been forwarded to the National Treasury to condone
irregular expenditure reported in the 2017/18 financial year.
The irregular expenditure condoned in the prior year relates to the non-compliance with Brand South Africa’s supply chain management policies and procedures. Other irregular expenditure
relates to non-compliance with National Treasury Instruction Notes and National Treasury SCM Practice Notes.
Irregular expenditure incurred in the prior year, relates to a tender awarded in October 2014 for an increase in the tendered amount of R4,640,400 without supporting documents. The matter is
still under investigation.
In addition to this, procurements for media partnerships with radio stations and newspapers were found to be single source procurements during the 2017/2018 audit. These procurements were
considered to be sole source procurements by the entity and as result, were approved by the Accounting Officer as opposed to National Treasury in the case of single source procurements. This
was then deemed irregular. The cost of these procurements amounted to R555,770.
As a result of the above, the total irregular expenditure incurred in the prior year for the two items above is R5,196,170 (R4,640,400 + R555,770).
130

Brand South Africa | Annual Report 2018/19

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements - Brand South Africa Trust Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019
38. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)

2019
R

2018
R

Details of possible irregular expenditure under investigation
Breach of supply chain management processes

14,906,421

-

Breach of supply chain management processes due to the cession of the contract not properly followed to renew the entity’s trademarks.
An investigation is being conducted to determine if such deviations constitute irregular expenditure as per National Treasury Instruction Notes.
Details of irregular expenditure – current year

Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings

Tender incorrectly evaluated

Staff member responsible underwent disciplinary action

Service requested without following correct SCM processes

To be determined

203,820

Award to connected person

To be determined

2,750,000

SBD4 not submitted by the suppliers

To be determined

7,583,631

4,368,970

14,906,421
Details of irregular expenditure – current year

Condoned by the Accounting Officer

Advertisement

Verbal agreement condoned

Concept document

Unapproved concept document condoned

Service request

Verbal request condoned

100,140
40,134
19,625
159,899

The irregular expenditure incurred was due to breaches of the supply chain management policy and policies and procedures of the entity. The authority was with the Accounting Officer to approve
such incidences, therefore, the Accounting Officer was the relevant authority able to condone such expenditure. This expenditure was condoned by the Accounting Officer.

5

39. SEGMENT INFORMATION
General information
Identification of segments
Brand South Africa is organised and reports to management on geographic basis: South Africa, China, USA and UK. Management uses these same segments for determining strategic objectives.
Segments were aggregated for reporting purposes. Information reported about these segments is used by management as a basis for evaluating the segment performances and for making
decisions about the allocation of resources. The disclosure of information about these segments are also considered appropriate for external reporting purposes.
Types of services by segment
All four segments perform administrative, communication, reputation and brand management services.
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment surplus or deficit, assets and liabilities
Segment surplus or decifit, assets and liabilities 2018

South Africa

China

USA

UK

Total

Revenue
Revenue from non-exchange transactions

194,300,000

-

-

-

194,300,000

Revenue from exchange transactions

5,928,465

-

-

-

5,928,465

Interest revenue

1,578,025

-

-

-

1,578,025

4,058

-

-

201,810,548

-

Gain on sale property, plant and equipment
Total segment revenue

-

-

Entity’s revenue

4,058
201,810,548
201,810,548

Expenditure
Salaries and wages

47,783,811

3,158,240

4,935,892

3,894,137

59,772,080

Other expenses

144,288,325

1,640,378

3,165,184

1,974,578

151,068,465

Total segment expenditure

192,072,136

4,798,618

8,101,076

5,868,715

210,840,545

Total segmental surplus/(deficit)

(9,029,997)

Interest expense

1,852

Assets
Segment assets

48,942,884

-

-

-

Total assets as per Statement of Financial Position

48,942,884
48,942,884

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Total liabilities as per Statement of Financial Position
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17,629,200

502,217

592,225

99,086

18,822,728
18,822,728
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
South Africa
Other information
Capital expenditure

10,597,279

Segment surplus or deficit, assets and liabilities - 2019

South Africa

China

USA

UK

Total

Revenue
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue from exchange transactions
Interest revenue
Other income
Total segment revenue

200,430,000

-

-

-

200,430,000

12,167,117

-

-

-

12,167,117

1,695,839

-

-

-

1,695,839

187,532

-

-

-

187,532

214,480,488

-

-

214,480,488

-

Entity’s revenue

214,480,488

Expenditure
Salaries and wages

60,888,287

794,623

2,683,336

2,038,351

66,404,597

Other expenses

157,527,837

1,458,701

4,046,647

3,182,199

166,215,384

Total segment expenditure

218,416,124

2,253,324

6,729,983

5,220,550

232,619,981

Total segmental surplus/(deficit)

(18,139,493)

Assets
Segment assets

42,997,859

-

-

-

Total assets as per Statement of financial Position

42,997,859
42,997,859

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Total liabilities as per Statement of financial Position

35,619,825

-

-

-

5

35,619,825
35,619,825

South Africa
Other information
Capital expenditure

1,299,243
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Section 6

Performance
Results
Brand South Africa is a Schedule 3A public
entity registered as a trust in terms of the
Trust Property Control Act, Act No. 57 of
1988. The Board of Trustees believes good
corporate governance is key to the entity’s
success.
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PROGRAMME 1: ADMINISTRATION
SUPPORTING STRATEGIC GOAL 1: SOUND GOVERNANCE, HIGH PERFORMANCE AND THE OPTIMAL UTILISATION OF AVAILABLE RESOURCES

STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

1.1 Sound internal
controls and good
governance.

1.1.1. Audit outcome Unqualified audit
opinion on financial
on previous year’s
financial information. information, with no
other matters.

Unqualified audit
opinion on financial
information, with no
other matters.

Target not met:
Unqualified opinion on financial
information with other matters.

The matters affecting the audit report related
to material non-compliance with laws and
regulations emanating from the 2015 financial
year. An action plan has been put in place to
deal with all the irregular expenditure matters
reported.

1.1.2. Audit outcome
on previous year’s
non-financial
performance
information.

Unqualified
audit opinion
on performance
information, with no
other matters.

Unqualified
audit opinion
on performance
information, with no
other matters.

Target met:
Unqualified audit opinion on
performance information, with
other matters.

Management has prioritised the improvement
of controls and have noticed a preliminary
improvement already.

1.1.3. Number
of reports on
monitoring and
improvements in
the internal control
environment.

New Indicator.

2 x reports per
annum outlining
monitoring and
improvements in
the internal control
environment.

Target met:
2 x reports per annum outlining
monitoring and improvements
in the internal control
environment.

N/A

80% overall
organisational
performance rating.

Target met
(exceeded):
97% overall organisational
performance rating.

N/A

1.2. A high
performing
organisation
through the
optimal utilisation
of technological,
financial and human
resources.

136

BASELINE
2017/2018

85% organisational
1.2.1. Percentage
overall organisational performance rating.
performance rating
at AGSA annual
standard of 80%.

TARGET 2018/2019 ACTUAL ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE 2018/2019

VARIANCE EXPLANATION

1.2.2. Percentage
variance on
approved budget vs.
actual expenditure.

5% Variance as
per materiality
framework on
budget versus
expenditure.

5% variance as
per materiality
framework on
budget versus
expenditure.

Target met:
2% variance as per materiality
framework on budget versus
expenditure.

N/A

1.2.3. Percentage
availability of all IT
systems.

98% availability of all
IT systems.

98% availability of all
IT systems.

Target met (exceeded):
99.4% availability of all IT
systems.

High availability of IT systems is attributed to the
sound business continuity strategy in place.
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PROGRAMME 2: BRAND, MARKETING AND REPUTATION MANAGEMENT
SUPPORTING STRATEGIC GOAL 2: PROACTIVE AND COORDINATED REPUTATION MANAGEMENT OF THE NATION BRAND
STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

BASELINE 2017/2018

TARGET 2018/2019

ACTUAL ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE 2018/2019

VARIANCE EXPLANATION

2.2. Enhanced
understanding of
the Nation Brand
performance.

2.2.1. Number of
analysis reports on
performance of
the Nation Brand
produced.

14 x Internal analysis
reports on external
indices.

2.2.1. 12 x analysis
reports on
performance of
the Nation Brand
produced.

Target met:
13 x analysis reports on
performance of the Nation
Brand produced.

N/A

2.2.2. Number of
SA Incorporated
research analysis
reports produced.

4 x SA Incorporated
research analysis
reports produced.

2.2.2. 4 x SA
Incorporated
research analysis
reports produced.

Target met:
4 x SA Incorporated research
analysis reports produced.

N/A

2.2.3. Number of
domestic perceptions
research studies
concluded.

2 x Research reports
on fieldwork.
4 x Brand South
Africa analysis
reports.

2.2.3.
4 x quarterly
domestic perceptions
research conducted,
including Online
Survey, Focus Group.

Target met:
4 x quarterly domestic
perceptions research conducted,
including Online Survey, Focus
Group.

N/A

2.2.4. Number
of international
research on
reputation and
perceptions of
Nation Brand
conducted.

1 x Investor
perceptions
(consolidating 16 per
market reports)
1 x Nation Brand
Index (consolidating
20 per market
reports).

2.2.4. 1 x Investor
Perceptions study
encompassing 16
markets conducted.

Target met:
1 x Investor Perceptions study
encompassing 16 markets
conducted.

N/A

2.2.5. Number of
approved Annual
SA Competitiveness
Forum outcome
reports.

1 x approved SACF
programme report
(consolidated from
4 African regional
build-up seminars).

2.2.5 1 x approved
Annual SA
Competitiveness
Forum outcome
report.

Target met:
1 x approved Annual SA
Competitiveness Forum
outcome report.

N/A

6
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STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

BASELINE 2017/2018

2.3. Improved Nation
Brand reputation and
perceptions among
South Africans.

9 x Play Your Part
2.3.1. Play Your Part
provincial activities.
activities utilised
to promote Nation
Brand values, identity
and constitutional
awareness
implemented.

TARGET 2018/2019

ACTUAL ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE 2018/2019

VARIANCE EXPLANATION

2.3. 1 9 x
PYP activities
implemented.

Target met:
9 x PYP activities implemented.

N/A

2.3.2. Number
of activations
utilised to promote
constitutional
awareness.

Implement 6 x
activations.

2.3.2. 10 x activations
utilised to promote
constitutional
awareness.

Target met:
(exceeded)
11 x activations utilised
to promote constitutional
awareness.

A total of 11 activations were executed for the
year. Q4 was utilised to ensure that all provinces
were reached as per the objective of the target.
Annual target exceeded due to the identification
of additional opportunities to engage audiences
in the Gauteng province.

2.3.3. Number of
marketing platforms
utilised for the
constitutional
awareness campaign.

8 x Marketing
platforms utilised
to promote
constitutional
awareness.

2.3.3. 16 x marketing
platforms utilised for
the constitutional
awareness campaign.

Target met:
16 x marketing platforms utilised
for the constitutional awareness
campaign.

N/A
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PROGRAMME 2: BRAND, MARKETING AND REPUTATION MANAGEMENT
SUPPORTING STRATEGIC GOAL 3: PROACTIVE AND COORDINATED COMMUNICATION OF THE NATION BRAND VALUE SYSTEM AND VALUE PROPOSITION
STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

BASELINE 2017/2018

TARGET 2018/2019

ACTUAL ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE 2018/2019

VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.1. Improved
Nation Brand
reputation and
perceptions
domestically and
internationally.

3.1.1. Content and
Communication
programmes that
engage with issues
that are strategic to
the reputation of
the Nation Brand
developed.

16 x sets of positive
messaging and related
content.

3.1.1. 16 x positive
communication
content pieces
published.

Target met:
34 x positive communication
content pieces published.

There was increase in negative coverage of
the country domestically and internationally,
due to the land reform announcement.
Also, there was a need to increase positivity
due to the country hosting international
conferences, namely, ITU and BRICS, as
well as anticipating the widely announced
Investment Conference to be hosted in Oct.
Additional targets achieved in Global
Markets (Country Offices).

3.1.2. Number of
reports outlining
positive content
disseminated on digital
platforms.

N/A

3.1.2. 4 x reports per
annum outlining
positive content
disseminated on
digital platforms.

Target met:
4 x reports per annum outlining
positive content disseminated
on digital platforms.

N/A

3.1.3. 12 x monthly
reports on issues
responded to
through content and
messaging.

Target met:
12 x monthly reports on issues
responded to through content
and messaging.

12 x reports outlining
3.1.3. Number of
actions to identified
reports on issues
issues.
responded to through
content and messaging.

N/A

6

Annual Report 2018/19 | Brand South Africa

139

STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

BASELINE 2017/2018

TARGET 2018/2019

ACTUAL ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE 2018/2019

VARIANCE EXPLANATION

3.2. Positive
positioning of
Nation Brand
through media
engagement
activities.

3.2.1. Number of
media engagement
programmes
implemented to
strengthen relations
and liaison with media
implemented.

Implement 4 x
media engagement
programmes.

3.2.1. 4 x implemented
media engagement
activities to strengthen
relations and liaison
with media.

Target met:
(exceeded)
10 x implemented media
engagement activities to
strengthen relations and liaison
with media.

Brand South Africa was presented with
opportunities for additional strategic media
engagements due to the country hosting
international events (ITU, BRICS). The Media
Tour was a tactical opportunity offered by
stakeholder partnerships.
Due to the country hosting the ITU
conference and the first Investment
Conference, the organisation was requested
to support with media engagements for
DTPS through the CNBC Africa Media
partnership to host a post ITU panel
discussion.
The President wanted an on the record
engagement with foreign correspondents
based in the country, post the investment
conference to drive the momentum on
the success of the conference and address
other issues in the environment such as land
reform. This received extensive international
media coverage.
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PROGRAMME 2: BRAND, MARKETING AND REPUTATION MANAGEMENT
SUPPORTING STRATEGIC GOAL 4: PROACTIVE AND COORDINATED MARKETING OF THE NATION BRAND AND THE NATION BRAND IDENTITY
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

BASELINE
2017/2018

TARGET 2018/2019

ACTUAL ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE 2018/2019

VARIANCE EXPLANATION

4.1. Enhanced
awareness of the Nation
Brand identity, image,
competitiveness, and
Nation Brand value
proposition.

4.1.1. Number of
international plaforms
to promote the Nation
Brand.

Implement 8 x
international
programmes to
promote Nation
Brand.

4.1.1 8 x international
platforms utilised to
promote the Nation
Brand.

Target met:
(exceeded)
13 x international platforms
utilised to promote the Nation
Brand.

Brand South Africa supported strategic
initiatives such as the NBA. Additional targets
also achieved in markets in the USA and
China Country Offices.

4.1.2. Number of
domestic platforms
utilised to promote the
Nation Brand.

Implement
16 x domestic
programmes to
promote Nation
Brand.

4.1.2 18 x domestic
platforms utilised to
promote the Nation
Brand.

Target met:
(exceeded)
19 x domestic platforms utilised
to promote the Nation Brand.

Brand South Africa supported strategic
initiatives such as the DSTV Delicious Festival.

4.2.1. Number of
institutions reached
for Nation Brand
alignment training.

80 x Institutions
reached for
Nation Brand
alignment
training.

4.2.1. 80 x institutions
reached through
Nation Brand
alignment training.

Target met:
(exceeded)
175 x Institutions reached for
Nation Brand alignment training.

This target was exceeded mainly through
leveraging stakeholder platforms,
stakeholders realising the importance of
alignment to the Nation Brand identity
when promoting any aspect of the country
internationally as well as the organisation
receiving requests for additional training
from stakeholders.

4.2.2. Number of new
registrations on the
marketers portal.

300 x new
registrations on
the marketers
portal.

4.2.2. 500 x new
registrations on
marketers portal.

Target met:
(exceeded)
528 x new registrations on
marketers portal.

This target was exceeded due to the
competition held which was aimed at
increasing and diversifying Brand South
Africa’s image library in collaboration with
South African Professional Photographers
(SAPP), as well as additional stakeholder
training programmes.

4.2. Cohesive approach
when positioning and
marketing the Nation
Brand amongst targeted
stakeholders.

6
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

BASELINE
2017/2018

TARGET 2018/2019

ACTUAL ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE 2018/2019

VARIANCE EXPLANATION

4.3. Strengthened
Nation Brand advocacy,
domestically and
among South African’s
living abroad.

4.3.1. Number of new
PYP ambassadors
registered.

100 x new PYP
ambassadors
registered.

4.3.1. 200 x new
PYP ambassadors
registered.

Target met:
(exceeded)
202x new PYP ambassadors
registered.

The PYP audio-visual promoting a call to
action boosted these numbers and the
organisation recovered from the Q1 deficit.

4.3.2. Number of
GSA activations
implemented.

18 x GSA
activations.

4.3.2.
17 x GSA activations.

Target met:
(exceeded)
18 x GSA activations.

The GSA Engagement hosted in Q1 of the
2018/19 FY was a tactical opportunity
deemed strategic enough to support.
Brand South Africa was on a working visit
to the market on the invitation of Brand
Madagascar to assist with the strategy
development process for their destination
brand.
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PROGRAMME 3: STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS
SUPPORTING STRATEGIC GOAL 1: PROACTIVE AND COORDINATED REPUTATION MANAGEMENT OF THE NATION BRAND
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

BASELINE
2017/2018

2.1. Enhanced relations
with Stakeholders
towards the promotion
of the of the Nation
Brand reputation
domestically and
internationally.

2.1.1. Approved Annual N/A
Stakeholder Relations
Strategy implemented.

TARGET 2018/2019

ACTUAL ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE 2018/2019

VARIANCE EXPLANATION

2.1.1. Develop and
implement annual
Stakeholder Relations
strategy.

Target met:
2018/19 Stakeholder Relations
strategy developed, approved
with ongoing implementation.

N/A

2.1.2. Number of
coordinated activities
implemented in
partnership with
private sector
stakeholders.

10 x Coordinated
and implemented
programmes in
partnership with
private sector
stakeholders.

2.1.2. 12 x coordinated
activities implemented
in partnership
with private sector
stakeholders.

Target met:
(exceeded)
15 x coordinated activities
implemented in partnership with
private sector stakeholders.

The annual target was exceeded due to the
addition of activities (to be executed) within
existing partnerships. These additional
activities were executed through the business
engage and nation builder partnerships.

2.1.3. Number of
coordinated activities
implemented in
partnership with
state institution
stakeholders.

18 x Coordinated
and implemented
programmes in
partnership with
state institution
stakeholders.

2.1.3. 14 x coordinated
activities implemented
in partnership with
state institution
stakeholders.

Target met:
(exceeded)
16 x coordinated activities
implemented in partnership with
state institution stakeholders.

Additional strategic activities were identified
and executed due the organisation’s
conclusion of an MOU with proudly South
African. Two additional activities were then
executed in collaboration with Proudly South
African.

2.1.4. Number of
coordinated activities
implemented in
partnership with civil
society stakeholders.

16 x Coordinated
and implemented
programmes
in partnership
with civil society
stakeholders.

2.1.4. 12 x coordinated
activities implemented
in partnership
with civil society
stakeholders.

Target met:
(exceeded)
17 x coordinated activities
implemented in partnership with
civil society stakeholders.

Additional activities were executed within
existing partnerships. Due to the strategic
importance of the Mandela centenary
programme - additional activities were
concluded in collaboration with the Nelson
Mandela Foundation. The JCI partnerships
also allowed for the execution of more
activities than initially planned at no
additional cost.
A tactical opportunity also emerged for a
collaboration with Lead-SA - which is a well
known civil society organisation.
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

BASELINE
2017/2018

TARGET 2018/2019

ACTUAL ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE 2018/2019

VARIANCE EXPLANATION

2.1. Enhanced relations
with Stakeholders
towards the promotion
of the of the Nation
Brand reputation
domestically and
internationally.

2.1.5. Number of
in-market activities
implemented with
stakeholders (civil
society, government
and private sector).

48 x Coordinated
and implemented
in market and
activation
programmes.

2.1.5. 48 x
in-market activities
implemented.

Target met:
(exceeded)
49 x in-market activities
implemented.

The launch of Revised Incentives for Global
Business Sector by Minister Rob Davies,
London hosted in the UK was a tactical
opportunity deemed strategic enough to
support. Moreover, the request for support
came directly from Minister Davies’ office.

2.1.6.
Number of activities
implemented at
strategic platforms.

N/A

2.1.6 7 x activities
implemented at
strategic platforms.

Target met:
(exceeded)
10 x activities implemented at
strategic platforms.

The additional activities implemented during
the course of the 2018/19 FY were tactical
opportunities that were deemed strategic
enough to support.
More importantly, two of these activities
were implemented following a direct
request from Presidency for marketing and
communications support from Brand South
Africa, namely the China State Visit and
FOCAC Summit as well as the United Nations
General Assembly (UNGA) support and side
events.
Similarly, the Dept of Telecommunications
and Postal Services requested Brand South
Africa’s support with the International
Telecommunications Union (ITU) World 2018
Conference and build-up activities.
The BRICS Summit programme was also
enhanced with the hosting of a BRICS
Sherpas meeting as a build up to the main
Summit.

2.1.7. Number of
stakeholder feedback
sessions on the Nation
Brand performance.
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30 x Stakeholder
feedback sessions
on Nation Brand
performance.

2.1.7. 35 x stakeholder
feedback sessions
on the Nation Brand
performance.

Target met:
(exceeded)
42 x stakeholder feedback
sessions on the Nation Brand
performance.

Feedback sessions are closely aligned to the
Nation Brand Alignment Training sessions.
The increased requests for training afforded
the organisation with an increased number
of platforms for feedback. These sessions
were facilitated at no extra cost to the
organisation.

Notes
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